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PART 1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

1.1 VISION 

 
A society free from all forms of gender oppression and inequality.  

 

 

1.2 MISSION 

 
Promotion, protection, monitoring and evaluation of gender equality in South Africa. 

 

 

1.3 MANDATE OF THE COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY  

 
The Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) is an independent statutory body, established in terms of Chapter 

9, Section 187 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa. The powers and functions of the CGE are 

detailed in the Commission on Gender Equality Act 39 of 1996. In terms of Section 11(1), the CGE must: 

 

 Monitor all organs of society to ensure that gender equality is integrated, developed and attained; 

 Assess all legislation from a gender perspective; 

 Conduct research and make recommendations to Parliament and other authorities; 

 Educate and inform the public; 

 Investigate complaints on gender-related issues; 

 Monitor South Africa’s progress towards gender equality and compliance with international norms; 

and  

 Liaise and interact with institutions, bodies or authorities, as well as with civil society, to promote 

gender equality. 
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1.4 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE  
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1.5 FOREWORD 
 

The Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) places on record the year 2007/2008 as part of its public 

accountability as required by law. However, an Annual Report is supposed to be more than that. Important as 

compliance and accountability are, an Annual Report for a growing and learning organisation such as ours also 

offers an opportunity to reflect on the past year and learn some lessons from it.  

 

It is an awkward space to find oneself in, writing a foreword to an Annual Report for a year that has not been 

completely under one’s leadership. A large part of leadership of this past year belongs to Ms Joyce Piliso-

Seroke, as she left the CGE only five months before the end of the financial year. As such, it is important to 

recall her contribution and leadership, and to duly acknowledge that this review is partly a result of her 

leadership and guidance.  

 

As a new Chairperson of the new team of Commissioners, it is also important to acknowledge upfront that this 

report covers a year in which we had not fully got to grips with what leadership meant for Commissioners and, 

most critically, what was expected from us. It is only in the next Annual Report that our own stamp and 

footprints will be clearly visible.  

 

This is not a disclaimer and distantiation: as an organisation that is informed by gender equality principles, by 

affirming others and taking both credit and criticism for work done, this is a good way to start. It ensures that 

our public recognises from the outset that this Annual Report is the last of its kind. Since the end of this 

financial year, the CGE has undergone – and continues to undergo – fundamental changes, some exhilarating 

and some frightening and unsettling. That, of course, is what a growth process is about.  

 

In the process, we have fully reflected on what the spokes in the wheels are, as well as on what we must take 

with us, what we must learn from this organisation 11 years after its establishment.  

  

As a result of an intensive organisational diagnostic process, we are certain that the Annual Report of the 

forthcoming year will differ in content, texture and feel, as well as in the actual organogram and location of 

skills, human resources, talent and the vision and application of its principles in our work.  

 

It is appropriate, then, to characterise the year under review as the last of the previous culture of the CGE. The 

year has, however, also heralded new possibilities: we have revisited who we are as an institution and where 

we want to go. These possibilities, thoughts, new strategic direction and different areas of emphasis are 

evident in our strategic plan.  

 

We present this report to the South African public at a time when the organisation is undergoing changes, 

some of them deeply uncomfortable. Many of our stakeholders will no doubt wonder what we are doing to 

address these problems. That discussion belongs elsewhere; it should suffice to acknowledge that the CGE is 

changing.  

 

For us to address our mandate fully, we have to look closely at our organisation’s structural arrangements and 

organisational culture. We need to examine whether these are properly aligned with our human capital so 

that, as we enter the next phase, which is encapsulated in our new strategic vision and plan, we are clear 

about capacity and process.  

 

What do South Africans expect from the CGE at present? Are we doing our best to address these expectations? 

Are we doing our best to give of ourselves – and to the CGE vision – the commitment and guidance that will 

take us to a society that is free from all forms of gender inequality and oppression?  
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At the moment of presenting this Annual Report the answers are as complex as the questions themselves. In 

general, the political and economic context in which we have to rejuvenate the CGE is unpredictable and 

turbulent. The global economic meltdown has touched South Africans in various ways. Social inequalities have 

widened and the gendered implications of this have led us to foreground issues of gender and the economy.  

 

Already, in the Commission on the Status of Women in March 2008, the CGE played an important part in 

presenting some of the issues on financing for gender equality. In reality, as we argued in that forum, unless 

we look at the fundamental principles that inform the fiscal policies and choices that are made, it is not 

possible to refocus the economy in a manner that will bridge inequalities.  

 

Sadly, global experience shows that when the economic crisis deepens, other forms of inequality also deepen 

and become entrenched. As global financial institutions and capital look to save their sinking ships, we know 

that the mantra – minimising negative impact – means shifting risk from corporates and companies to the 

workers themselves. That shift continues to ripple across the entire spectrum of society. It takes a very definite 

gender character and the risk continues to shift from those who have power to those who are vulnerable – 

often women in the domestic sphere.  

 

Our understanding of the intersections of gender inequality with other forms of inequality has enabled us to 

develop a strategic focus that will place the CGE on a stronger platform. We are also in the process of 

addressing a number of audit queries that have arisen and led to a disclaimer. Systems and policy 

strengthening is one way in which we can address some of the audit questions. But, above all, there is an 

organisation-wide process that is aimed at educating CGE employees about compliance issues, optimising 

performance and improving the quality of our relationships with our stakeholders.  

 

This report is accompanied by the Auditor-General’s disclaimer of our financial reports – a dreaded result for 

any institution. For many, this situation is highly depressing and may lead to demoralisation. For me, the 

Chairperson of the CGE, this is an important wake-up call that has led the organisation to reassess its internal 

processes. It gives us the opportunity to learn anew where the organisation is vulnerable and why it is 

vulnerable so that we can address these areas of vulnerability in a rigorous, swift manner. It gives me great 

confidence to announce that process has already started and is in full swing. I am confident that the CGE is on 

a growth path that will see a vibrant organisation coming into full force.  

 

I want to take this opportunity to thank my colleagues, Commissioners of the CGE, who have been steadfast in 

their commitment to steer this organisation, even in trying times. In particular, I want to thank two 

Commissioners, Ms Janine Hicks and Ms Ndileka Loyilane, who stepped up to the plate and assumed a 

caretaker role after the suspension of our CEO, Ms Chana Majake. Leadership often means being thrown into 

the deep end and having to find your way while acting in the interest of the organisation and the larger 

community of stakeholders and taxpayers. Janine Hicks and Ndileka Loyilane have done this and I have often 

wondered where their energy comes from. It comes, I realise, from a commitment that enables people to take 

risks and simply assume leadership.  

 

A word of appreciation goes to the CGE staff who have travelled with us through this process of organisational 

change. Together, Commissioners and staff, we are confident that CGE is now poised to take its place in the 

South African public domain. We continue to sustain our commitment and sharpen the lens through which we 

look at our society and ensure that a nuanced, yet vigorous gender analysis emerges, not only for the CGE but 

for the entire country.  
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I wish to acknowledge the continued support of former Justice and Constitutional Development Minister 

Brigitte Mabandla, who held that position for the period covered in this report, and former Deputy Minister 

Johnny de Lange. I’d like to thank the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development team, under the 

leadership of Advocate Oshara Sewpaul, who work closely with us, for their continued support and respect of 

the independence of the CGE. Finally, Mr Yunis Carrim, the Chairperson of the Portfolio Committee on Justice 

and Constitutional Development deserves special mention for being engaged, committed and for taking us 

seriously enough as an institution to take us to task when he believes we are performing at a level beyond our 

capacity.  

 

It is this relationship, based on mutual respect and shared values of accountability, that has guided our 

interaction not only with the Chairperson of that Portfolio Committee but also with the entire Committee and 

its support staff in Parliament.  

 

Nomboniso Gasa  

Chairperson, Commission for Gender Equality 
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1.6 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
This Annual Report documents the Commission for Gender Equality’s implementation of its strategic plan and 

interventions for the 2007/2008 financial period. It sets out the key objectives, programmes and achievements 

for this period, and captures key programmatic interventions and outputs.  

 

The report also seeks to capture the CGE’s compliance with National Treasury Regulations, and reports on its 

expenditure against the budget for the period. In addition, this Annual Report seeks to assess, in a reflective 

manner, programme performance against the CGE mandate and programmatic objectives for the period, 

mapping areas where targets were met, impact seen and challenges encountered.  

 

Finally, noting the long-awaited appointment of a full set of Commissioners with effect from June 2007, this 

report reflects on the strategic interventions at policy, leadership and support levels by Commissioners and 

how these have contributed to the overall performance and achievements of the CGE. 

 

A plenary meeting of Commissioners suspended the Chief Executive Officer of the CGE, Ms Chana Majake. This 

suspension came in response to a staff memorandum dated 16 April 2008, which expressed a vote of no 

confidence in the CEO and her senior management’s ability to manage the organisation, and related matters 

identified by Commissioners.  

 

The suspension took place with immediate effect, pending the outcome of an investigation by external experts 

and overseen by a team of Commissioners, led by the Deputy Chairperson, Commissioner Mfanozelwe Shozi. 

To ensure the smooth operation of the organisation during the period of the suspension and investigation of 

the CEO, the Plenary – the highest decision-making body of the CGE – nominated two full-time Commissioners, 

Commissioner Janine Hicks and Commissioner Ndileka Loyilane, to jointly assume the role of Acting CEO with 

effect from 21 April 2008. 

 

Ms Majake is, at the time of production of this Annual Report, still under suspension pending the final 

outcome of the investigation, and therefore not in a position to provide introductory remarks to the Annual 

Report.  

 

Commissioner Janine Hicks 

Commissioner Ndileka Loyilane 

Acting Chief Executive Officers 
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PART 2 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE AND OVERVIEW 
 
During the year under review, the CGE used the six thematic areas identified in its strategic plan to anchor its 

programmes. In taking such an approach, the CGE is also moving towards an integrated organisational 

planning process, although this will be evident in the forthcoming Annual Report, as the strategic shift is still in 

its infancy.  

 

The six thematic areas are:  

 

1. Culture, religion, traditional practices and belief systems 

2. Gender-based violence  

3. Poverty and gender  

4. The National Gender Machinery  

5. Gender, democracy and good governance 

6. Gender and HIV/AIDS 

 

The programmes and interventions of the CGE are not only driven by the thematic areas, nor do they only 

focus on core, planned activities; they allow interventions from current and emerging issues. There is room for 

public intervention and contribution that, at times, offers the CGE an opportunity to tackle topical issues, such 

as the Zandile Mpanza case in KwaZulu-Natal. (Zandile Mpanza was disrobed in public for wearing pants in 

Umlazi township’s T-Section, where women were banned from wearing trousers.) Through interaction with 

the public and striking a careful balance between nationally planned programmes, which emerged from the 

CGE’s planning processes, and allowing space for public input, the CGE is slowly being informed by unfolding 

processes and the lived experience of South Africans.  

 

The programmes have different areas of emphasis, from legal advisory and litigation to public education, 

research and effective communication advocacy.  

 

This report covers the programmes that have been conducted at provincial and national levels. It also focuses 

on how the various departments, provinces and supporting departments have worked together to cover the 

programmatic approach developed by the CGE.  

 

 

2.1 INTERNATIONAL PLATFORMS AND INTEGRATION IN THE WORK OF THE CGE  

 
In the period covered in this report, the CGE has been assessing its use of public platforms and protocols to 

ensure that its monitoring work is informed by the international and national protocols that South Africa is 

party to.  

 

To this end, Commissioners began a discussion on the presence of the CGE at international forums such as the 

United Nations Commission on the Status of Women (CSW), which took place in March 2008. One of the new 

and innovative ways in which the CGE tried to integrate these discussions into the mainstream of the 

organisation was by including a junior member of the Secretariat in the delegation that attended the CSW.  

 

At the last CSW, the CGE played a dual role: as advisor and monitor of both the global platform presented by 

CSW and the South African government’s approach to issues.  
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The main theme of CSW 2008, ‘Financing for Gender Equality’, touched on current debates within the CGE 

itself, including the implications of the funding structure of the National Gender Machinery. The CGE, through 

its presentations to the South African delegation and in some of the negotiations at the UN, examined the 

complexity and interconnectedness of gender and national budgets, and the gendered nature of priorities at 

national government and global levels.  

 

 

2.2. KEY OBJECTIVES, PROGRAMMES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

 

2.2.1 Key Objectives 
 

The core objectives for the CGE, which represent our primary business, are the following:  

 

 Developing effective gender monitoring mechanisms and monitoring public and private 

institutions so that the appropriate implementation of gender-sensitive strategies, policies and 

programmes is ensured;  

 Developing, conducting and managing informative and educational programmes to foster public 

understanding of matters pertaining to gender equality and the roles and activities of the CGE; 

 Monitoring and evaluating any Act of Parliament, law or treaty that affects, or is likely to affect, 

gender equality or the status of women, and making recommendations to Parliament or the 

relevant legislative body with regard hereto; 

 Investigating any gender-related issue on its own accord or on receipt of a complaint, and 

endeavouring to resolve any dispute or rectify any act or omission; 

 Creating national, regional and international strategic links to ensure mutual support, effective 

collaboration and recognition of the need to promote and protect gender equality; and 

 Creating appropriate internal structures to promote sustainability and the effective functioning of 

the CGE. 

 

 

2.3. ACHIEVEMENTS  

 
Below are the main focus areas of the Commission: 

 

2.3.1 Public Education and Information 

 
In an effort to contribute to the successful implementation of the Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 

2000 (PAIA) within gender mainstreaming, the Commission, through its Public Education and Information (PEI) 

Department, hosted women’s intervention programmes throughout the 2007/2008 financial year.  

 

Specific activities were held during the Women’s Month Celebrations, an initiative that enjoyed huge success 

and was welcomed as a platform for the sharing of information and ideas by all the women who attended.  

 

The initiative provided forums that highlighted key concerns of both rural and urban women, such as poverty, 

HIV/AIDS and power-sharing between men and women. Provincial imbizos were able to put forward the 

following challenges to the Commission: poor access to healthcare facilities in rural and peri-urban areas; the 

gendered impact of HIV/AIDS; limited rural infrastructure, which increased the burden of poverty and 
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demands of labour on women and their families; the difficulties of accessing social grants; and the continued 

vulnerability and abuse of farm workers.  

 

Special events were also held during the 16 Days of Activism for No Violence against Women and Children, 

which included World AIDS Day and International Human Rights Day. The CGE was able to strengthen South 

Africa’s constitutional democracy by increasing understanding of the gender-relevant legislative environment, 

as well as by increasing stakeholder access to existing mechanisms. 

 

In this financial year, the Provincial Gender Machinery Project was successfully conducted in all provinces, with 

dialogues on representation and participation in political and legislative processes held with communities and 

civil society structures.  

 

To further increase the sustainability of the work conducted through the CGE, the PEI Department actively 

fostered partnerships with public-sector institutions and fellow Chapter 9 institutions and civil society 

organisations. The Commission was able to bring together various groups, such as women’s groups and 

institutions, and bodies such as provincial AIDS councils, the House of Traditional Leaders, government 

departments, various parts of the National Gender Machinery, Women in Agriculture and Rural Development, 

gay, lesbian and inter-gendered civil society organisations, NGOs, community-based organisations working 

with women’s issues – such as gender-based violence, HIV/AIDS and health-related programmes – paralegal 

and advice centres, and advocacy/community mobilisation groups to deliberate issues relating to gender 

equity in South Africa.  

 

Partnerships were also successfully forged with national and community radio stations, enabling the CGE to 

increase coverage of gender mainstreaming activities in all provinces. In light of the importance of partnership 

in gender equality, as highlighted in the Constitution, the CGE’s PEI unit collaborated with the South African 

Human Rights Commission, the Independent Electoral Commission and the Office of the Public Protector. The 

campaign, ‘Empowering Women in Eradicating Poverty and Supporting Democracy through Equality’, aimed to 

strengthen the collaboration of Chapter 9 institutions in promoting equality in all sectors of society and create 

platforms for women to vocalise the undermining of their rights.  

 

In 2007, the CGE was able to strengthen its commitment to its stakeholders through its ‘Take Back the Night’ 

campaign, which was conducted in Limpopo Province under the gender-based violence theme during the 

Women’s Month Celebrations. The activities took place in the Vhembe District Municipality. The campaign 

provided victims and rehabilitated perpetrators with the opportunity to share their experiences. The function 

climaxed with a march with the South African Police Service.  

 

One of the major roles of the Commission is to develop, conduct and manage informative and educational 

programmes to foster public understanding of matters pertaining to gender equality. To achieve this, the PEI 

Department supported the CGE Research Department by convening dialogues on widowhood in all provinces. 

Widows were targeted specifically for their input and the dialogues were convened with representation from 

both the House of Traditional Leaders and the Department of Home Affairs. The dialogues highlighted the 

extreme marginalisation of widows, both socially and financially, as well as their lack of access to judicial and 

other mechanisms for adequate redress and support.  

 

The decision to host the conference in Karridene in KwaZulu-Natal was largely based on the CGE’s desire to 

highlight the enormity of gender-based violence (GBV) in the province and, indeed, nationally. The conference 

venue was a mere 12km from the Shayamoya township where, in 2007, the decomposed bodies of 11 

murdered women were found. The women were from disadvantaged socioeconomic backgrounds and their 

murders highlighted the interconnectedness of poverty and GBV. The CGE has closely monitored the progress 
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of the case and attended court hearings of the accused. The declaration formulated at the conference will be 

popularised by the PEI unit in activities planned for the next financial year. 

 

There was a concerted effort to increase access to PEI interventions, as evidenced by the geographic expansion 

of interventions in all nine provincial offices. Information and educational processes were conducted in 109 

districts and/or municipalities countrywide. Although the primary target groups continued to be those 

communities living in impoverished rural and peri-urban settings, some interventions were conducted in more 

urban areas in response to demand.  

 

2.3.2 Legal Services 
 

In terms of the legislative framework and access to justice, the Legal Services Department: 

 

 Made submissions to Parliament on legislation impacting on gender equality; 

 Provided input to, and collaborated with, an alliance seeking legal recognition of domestic 

partnerships; and 

 Provided input to the development of the Southern African Development Community (SADC) 

Protocol on Gender Equality, which was signed by Heads of Government in Johannesburg in 

August 2008. 

 

In terms of government, public-sector programmes and service delivery, the department: 

 

 Provided input to the Women and Rural Development process and conference; and 

 Provided input to the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development in the process of 

compiling the first International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights report.  

 

In identifying and removing discriminatory practices, customs and beliefs, the department: 

 

 Litigated on the Shilubane matter on discriminatory practices, customs and beliefs in respect of 

women’s chieftaincy.  

 

2.3.3 Communications 
 

The Communications Department successfully developed and implemented the Commission’s communication 

strategy. Through the unit, the Commission was able to interact optimally with regional, provincial and 

national media, effectively disseminating information about its programmes, activities and visions to 

communities. 

 

2.3.4 Human Resources 
 

During the year under review, the Human Resources Department: 

 

 Continued implementing a performance management and development framework; 

 Improved the vacancy rate, with vacant and funded management positions filled; 

 Ensured compliance with human resources legislation; 

 Offered management development (skills development) to middle managers; and 

 Ensured sound labour relations in the organisation. 
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2.3.5 Information Technology 

 
The new era for information and communications technologies (ICT) has begun, transforming how the CGE 

does business and interacts with stakeholders. There was vast transformation in the Commission’s ICT 

infrastructure over the financial year, with an infrastructure upgrade and the CGE embarking on the 

development of a new website.  

 

The IT unit has proved itself to be an effective and accountable regulator with a reputation for research- and 

evidence-based decision-making, a tribute to the dedication and expertise of its staff. This department is 

critical to the effective management of information and related information technology functions of the 

organisation. The Commission has a high dependence on its information system, which allows for effective and 

affordable services to be rendered, although providing these is not without challenges. 

 

2.3.6 Research 

 
In an effort to contribute to the overall policy and legislative framework and access to justice, the Research 

Department made a submission to Parliament on education legislation, provided input to the Legal 

Department’s position on grants for the elderly and participated in and hosted the development of the SADC 

Protocol on Gender Equality. It also reported its research findings to the National Assembly and the National 

Council of Provinces and commented on the budget vote of the Western Cape provincial departments of 

Education and Home Affairs.  

 

With regard to participation in government, public-sector programmes and service delivery, the Research 

Department provided input for the Women and Rural Development process and conference, contributed to 

the development of the Gender Barometer and sensitised education decision-makers about policy gaps and 

challenges in integrating gender into the curriculum and gender mainstreaming in national and provincial 

departments. 

 

The Research Department also interacted with civil society in various ways, sensitising teachers’ unions to 

issues around gender mainstreaming in education, and sensitising NGOs, community-based organisations and 

faith-based organisations to the needs and plight of widows, the elderly and people affected by HIV/AIDS, as 

well as working to identify and remove discriminatory practices, customs and beliefs regarding widows, the 

elderly and people living with HIV/AIDS. 

 

Apart from the Gender in the Private Sector Project, which was rolled over to the 2008 financial year, the 

Research Department was able to complete all target projects (as outlined below) that were initiated since 

2006.  

 

 

2.4 OVERVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT 

 
The service delivery environment of the CGE is highly sensitive and challenging because it concentrates on and 

overlaps with the political, civil, economic, social and cultural dimensions of gender in the country.  

 

Internally, some administrative developments influenced the expectations of the Commission and its ability to 

reach its targets. Demand for the Commission’s services was affected by external factors, such as:  
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 The impact of HIV/AIDS on women; 

 Unequal treatment on the basis of gender; 

 Poverty, unemployment, illiteracy and the undermining of women’s dignity; 

 Inadequate delivery of essential services, including education, land, housing, social security, 

healthcare, a clean environment, food and water to homes headed by women; 

 Policy developments within national and provincial spheres of government; and 

 Implementation of the Equality and Promotion of Access to Information legislation. 

 

2.4.1 Overall Performance 
 

Accessibility of the Commission 

 

The national office of the Commission is based in Johannesburg. This office also serves as a provincial office for 

the Gauteng province. The Commission has offices in all of the nine provinces: Gauteng, Limpopo, Free State, 

Western Cape, North-West, Mpumalanga, KwaZulu-Natal, Eastern Cape and Northern Cape. These offices are 

centrally located within the provinces for easy public access. Provincial offices are regarded as extensions of 

Head Office and carry out the work of the Commission’s programmes in the provinces. 

 

Fighting inequality 

 

To ensure that the Commission addresses and contributes to the current debates on gender mainstreaming 

issues, the Commission hosted the first Annual Human Rights Day Lecture, ‘Fighting Poverty: A Matter of 

Obligation, Not Charity’, in cooperation with other Chapter 9 institutions and the United Nations Office of the 

High Commissioner for Human Rights. All the Commission’s programmes are designed to respond to the 

challenges of poverty in the country. 

 

Workshops, dialogues, campaigns and conferences 

 

The Commission convened dialogues on widowhood through the PEI and Research departments in all 

provinces. The Commission exceeded the projected number of campaigns, dialogues and information sessions. 

Workshops and exhibitions were conducted to almost 100% of the projected total for the year.  

 

The CGE also hosted a national conference from 17-20 March 2008 in Karridene in KwaZulu-Natal, under the 

theme: ‘Gender-based Violence: Assessing Progress and Challenges’. The conference was used partly to 

monitor progress in implementing the Kopanong Declaration and the National Action Plan to End Gender-

based Violence. It was well attended, with approximately 100 delegates from government departments, civil 

society and academic institutions turning out for the conference. The conference also enhanced the CGE’s 

exploration of possible changes, emerging forms or expressions of violence and the implications thereof as 

they relate to gender equity.  

 

 

2.5 POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 
 

Several policies were revisited and revised. Every programme contributed to making these ventures a success. 

The impacts of these policy developments and legislative changes led to deployment of Commissioners and 

reshuffling of portfolios within the Commission.  
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2.6 PROGRAMMES 

 

2.6.1 Programme: Commissioners  

 

Service delivery objectives and indicators 

 

Commissioners are deployed to the provinces to lead, follow up and enforce gender-related issues within their 

provinces. They enforce the vision of the Commission in the provinces and ensure adequate education of 

community members on gender-related issues. These Commissioners’ main objectives are to develop and raise 

awareness of issues of gender equality, such as gender-related violence, and any form of gender bias and 

mistreatment within the community. In this way, they ensure that the Commission’s profile is enhanced. They 

achieve these objectives through presentations, education, research and advocacy, as well as policy 

development. 

 

Measurable objectives 

 

 To strengthen and raise the standard of the Commission through interactions with other 

organisations, including the gender-related NGOs, government and civil society;  

 To design and implement appropriate and required programmes and intercession, and to provide 

leadership in connection with gender-related issues in society; 

 To take action on gender-related matters in society; 

 To develop and enforce gender-related policies; and 

 To monitor and evaluate gender mainstreaming activities in the community. 

 
Designing and implementing appropriate and required programmes and intercession, and providing 

leadership: Commissioners have organised conferences and events to enlighten communities on gender-

related issues. They provide guidance and leadership in any gender-related crisis in communities. Top of the 

list are intercessions regarding poverty and violence in society. Through the Legal Department, Commissioners 

interceded on behalf of victims of rape, gender-based violence and other gender-related crimes. They were 

active in handling gender-related complaints through the process of appeals and presided over mediations and 

hearings. They also worked closely with counselling teams in the Commission to provide counselling to victims 

of gender-based abuse. 

 PERFORMANCE 
Monitoring and evaluating gender mainstreaming activities in the community: The Commissioners design 

and conduct gender-related research in the country. They also assess the nation’s commitment and dedication 

to gender mainstreaming activities. They act as the nation’s watchdogs in ensuring that global gender concerns 

are taken into account in South Africa. Through the various programmes they chair, they are able to assess the 

country’s position on gender-related issues, bringing it in line with global standards. The Commission ably 

monitors the impact of HIV/AIDS with regard to gender concerns. 

 

Challenges 

 

Equipment: The CGE is in the process of upgrading its equipment and ensuring that adequate and effective 

tools are provided within the budgetary provisions to ensure that work is done effectively and promptly.  
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Skills: It became apparent that there are disparate levels of technological literacy and, with the upgrading of 

systems, ongoing tools and skills training will be required to match equipment with needs and work output, 

and limit delays and breakdown of equipment.  

 

2.6.2 Programme: Finance and Administration  

 

Purpose 

 

The Finance and Administration Department has evolved to the point that it now organises the following key 

areas of the CGE: 

 

 Risk management; 

 Supply-chain management; 

 Asset management; 

 Facilities management; 

 Demand management; 

 Financial management; 

 Audit management; 

 Budget management; and 

 Accounting. 

 

These tasks require adequate and consistent capacity. However, the department has had deficiencies in 

maintaining appropriate capacity to efficiently and effectively run the department. 

 

Overview of service delivery 

 

The Finance and Administration Department services internal and external stakeholders.  

 

The Department was able to meet its expectations for the year under review, although it did so with 

inadequate capacity. Management reports produced during 2007/2008 provided an overall view of the 

finances of the organisation. The reports identified major cost drivers and highlighted key areas the 

organisation needed to bring under control, such as cash management. The department produced a 

management report for the period to 30 September 2007 and another for the period to 31 December 2007.  

 

However, the department faced its fair share of challenges. It was severely understaffed, both in terms of 

personnel and alignment of skills to responsibilities and expectations. The biggest challenge the department 

faced in the fiscal year was the lack of a budget disaggregated according to departments. The integrated model 

of budgeting made it difficult for the department to apply proper internal controls, ensure adequate 

delineation of duties and delegate authority in terms of who, in the absence of a CEO, could make financial 

decisions.  

 

The department is currently being reorganised through the institutional organisational diagnostic process. The 

system has disaggregated the budget according to departments and provinces. It is undergoing a 

decentralisation processes to empower provincial coordinators and heads of departments and a process of 

separating out the duties of each finance department official is under way. 
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Overall performance 

 

Although the department faced capacity constraints, it was able to deliver the following: 

 

 Annual Finance Report detailing its resource allocations for the Audit Expenditure Committee; 

and 

 Monthly management reports for appropriate decision making. 

 

Service delivery achievements 

 

Sub-programme Target for 2007/2008 Actual for 2007/2008 

Supply-chain management 80% 49% 

Fixed assets (recording) 90% 50% 

Asset register (completeness) 100% 50% 

Management reporting 90% 50% 

Stakeholder communication 90% 45% 

Risk management  90% 40% 

Budgetary control 90% 20% 

 
During the 2008/2009 financial year, the department aims to meet new targets in terms of compliance, 

managing risk and tightening control over budget expenditure. It also plans to ensure close adherence to the 

procedures and rules governing the resources granted to it by National Treasury. Through this, the department 

aims to ensure increased compliance with reporting requirements and submission of all documents required 

by National Treasury to assess and evaluate the financial expenditure and impact of the work of the CGE.  

 

The re-engineering process, led by an organisational diagnostic specialist and the in-house finance team, is 

dealing with all procedures, policies and rules to ensure that the organisation will achieve its objectives. The 

overall goal is to have a compliant organisation that runs effectively and efficiently, and receives unqualified 

reports. 

 

2.6.3 Programme: Public Education and Information 

 

Measurable objectives 

 

 Developing, conducting and managing public education and information programmes for the 

promotion of gender equality; 

 Liaising and interacting with organisations to promote gender equality; and 

 Fostering an understanding of matters pertaining to gender equality and the role and activities of 

the Commission. 

 

Service delivery objectives and indicators 

 

The Public Education and Information (PEI) Department achieved its objectives through a series of educational 

and outreach activities, such as campaigns, workshops, gender dialogues and seminars, conferences and 

exhibitions. Workshops raised awareness of issues relating to gender and poverty, gender-based violence, 

employment equity, democracy and good governance, citizenship, gender issues related to culture and 

tradition, the recognition of customary marriages, and the strengths and weaknesses of the Maintenance and 

Domestic Violence Acts. A total of 528 interventions were conducted in the year. 
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While interventions were conducted throughout the year, specific activities were held during the Women’s 

Month Celebrations. On Women’s Day, provincial imbizos highlighted key concerns of rural and urban women, 

including poor access to healthcare facilities in rural and peri-urban areas, the gendered impact of HIV/AIDS, 

limited rural infrastructure that increases the burden of poverty and demands of labour on women and their 

families, the difficulties of accessing social grants, and the continued vulnerability and abuse of farm workers. 

Special events were also held during the 16 Days of Activism for No Violence against Women and Children, 

which included World AIDS Day and International Human Rights Day. 

 

Table 2.1 Progress of the Public Education and Information Programme, 1 April 2007 – 31 March 

2008 

 

 
 
 

Province Number of 

campaigns 

Number of 

dialogues 

Number of 

workshops 

Number of 

exhibitions 

Number of information 

sessions 

Western Cape 8 6 36 5 8 

North-West 5 6 35 3 4 

Limpopo 4 5 40 5 2 

Eastern Cape 6 6 41 4 5 

Northern Cape 2 7 33 1 3 

Free State 4 6 40 4 10 

KwaZulu-Natal 6 9 44 4 0 

Gauteng 5 7 50 3 0 

Mpumalanga 5 4 35 3 5 

Total 46 58 354 32 38 
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Table 2.2  Total Public Education and Information statistics, 1 April 2007 – 31 March 2008 

 

Activity Projected as per nine provinces’ 

programmes of action 

Actual 

conducted 

Percentage 

conducted 

Percentage variance 

(actual against target) 

Workshops 40 x 9 = 360 354 98.3% 1.7% under target 

Campaigns 4 x 9 = 36 46 127.8% 27.8% over target 

Dialogues 4 x 9 = 36 58 161.1% 61.1% over target 

Exhibitions 4 x 9 = 36 32 88.9% 11.1% under target 

Information 

sessions 

 38 Information sessions did not form part of 

planned activities; they were held in 

response to requests and/or as determined 

by environmental demands 

Total PEI interventions = 528 

  

  
 
The Provincial Gender Machinery Project was successfully conducted in all provinces, with dialogues on 

representation and participation in political and legislative processes held with communities and civil society 

structures.  

 

To further increase the sustainability of work conducted, the PEI unit actively fostered partnerships with 

statutory entities and other civil society organisations. 

 

In working towards its mandate, the unit worked with groups and institutions such as provincial AIDS councils, 

the House of Traditional Leaders, government departments, parts of the National Gender Machinery, Women 

in Agriculture and Rural Development, gay, lesbian and inter-gendered civil society organisations, NGOs and 

community-based organisations working with women’s issues – including gender-based violence, HIV/AIDS 

and healthcare-related programmes – paralegal and advice centres, advocacy/community mobilisation groups 

etc. Partnerships were also successfully forged with national and community radio stations, enabling education 

offices in all provinces increased access to a broad range of stakeholders.  
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A campaign held in Mpumalanga highlighted the importance of partnerships with other institutions. The PEI 

unit collaborated with the South African Human Rights Commission, the Independent Electoral Commission 

and the Office of the Public Protector.  

 

In August 2007, a collaborative march was held with the Office of the Premier in KwaZulu-Natal and eThekwini 

Municipality in response to the Umlazi T-Section incident, in which women in the section were caned for 

wearing pants. The march was organised after one woman had her pants stripped off and her house burnt 

down by a mob of hostel members. The theme for the march was ‘KZN Cares and Protects Women’s Rights. Do 

You?’  

 

A further demonstration against the act was held outside the Umlazi Equality Court. This was a collaborative 

venture, with partner organisations including the Office of the Premier, Gender AIDS Forum, One-In-Nine 

Campaign and other organisations. 

  

A national conference from 17-20 March 2008 was held on ‘Gender-based Violence: Assessing Progress and 

Challenges’. The objective of the conference was to monitor progress in implementing the Kopanong 

Declaration and the National Action Plan to End Gender Violence. It also aimed at exploring possible changes, 

emerging forms or expressions of violence and their possible implications. The conference, which took place in 

Karridene in KwaZulu-Natal, was attended by approximately 100 delegates from government departments, 

civil society and academic institutions.  

 

Service delivery achievements  

 

Objective Activity Results/output Indicators Target time-frame Actual performance 

Develop, 

conduct and 

manage 

education 

and 

information 

programmes 

Popularise Beijing 

Platform of Action and 

the Convention on the 

Elimination of all Forms 

of Discrimination 

Against Women 

(CEDAW) 

 

 

Develop educational 

material 

 

 

 

CEDAW + Beijing 

Platform of Action  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Produce high-quality 

educational material 

 

Communities that are 

well informed about 

gender and gender 

equality 

 

Availability of simplified 

versions of Beijing + 10 

and CEDAW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Well-developed and 

appropriate workshop 

manuals for all priority 

areas 

 

 

February 2007 – March 

2007 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April 2007 – March 

2008 

 

 

 

Electronic PowerPoint 

presentations were 

developed and 

dispatched to the 

provinces on, firstly, the 

Beijing Platform for 

Action and, secondly, 

CEDAW 

 

Three pamphlets were 

revised and reprinted: 

1. Gender-based 

Violence 

2. Gender-based 

Violence Threatens 

Equality, Freedom, 

Peace and Democracy 

3. Freedom, Democracy 

and Gender Equality 

 

Eight publications were 

revised and reprinted:  

1. Working Women’s 

Manual 

2. Implementation of 

the Maintenance Act in 

the Magistrates’ Courts 

3. Gender Mainstream-
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Objective Activity Results/output Indicators Target time-frame Actual performance 

ing for Spatial Develop-

ment Initiatives 

4. Gender Budgeting in 

Local Government 

5. Tekatekano 

Newsletter, Issue 2 

6. Gender Advertising 

and Broadcasting 

7. Report on the 

Witchcraft Violence 

Road Shows in the 

Northern Province 

8. Review of the 1999 

General Elections – A 

Gender Perspective 

 Train the trainers Self-confident and 

highly competent staff 

and partners 

Trained trainers 

(internal Education 

Officers) 

March 2007 Education Officers (new 

and some current staff) 

attended an intensive 

induction workshop 

convened by the CGE 

Skills Development 

Committee  

 

Further training was 

provided to all 

Education Officers via 

the Regenesys Business 

School Programme. This 

was funded by the 

European Union 

through the Civil Society 

Advocacy Training. 

Courses included 

training on the Public 

Finance Management 

Act (PFMA) and Project 

Management 

 Gender training and 

human rights 

Self-confident, 

productive and highly 

competent staff  

Trained CGE members Ongoing Education Officers’ 

training on the Millen-

nium Development 

Goals was conducted in-

house by Commis-

sioners. Ongoing 

support required by 

provinces is provided. 

Gender training is being 

arranged for the next 

financial year 

 Workshops on: 

- Equality Project 

- Poverty 

- Gender-based violence 

- Employment equity 

Gender-sensitive and 

gender-aware 

communities 

Completed workshops 

as planned; 40 

workshops were 

conducted per province 

April 2007 – March 

2008 

98.3% of workshops 

were conducted. This 

amounted to 354 

workshops in total. The 

variance of actual 
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Objective Activity Results/output Indicators Target time-frame Actual performance 

- Democracy 

- Governance 

- Citizenship 

- Culture, religion and 

tradition 

- Maintenance 

- Domestic violence 

- Recognition of 

customary marriages 

 

against target was due 

to the unplanned 

demand for information 

sessions. These sessions 

take place on requests 

from stakeholders 

(private and public 

sector and civil society 

groups). Examples of 

information sessions 

conducted: input on the 

Working Women’s 

Manual; sexual harass-

ment; women in the 

workplace; customary 

marriage; gender, 

tradition and culture; 

empowerment of 

women; female genital 

mutilation and virginity 

testing; gender main-

streaming; gender-

based violence; and 

various requests on 

gender-related issues 

 

There were 38 

information sessions in 

total 

Develop 

concept 

papers 

Gender dialogues Gender-sensitive and 

gender-aware 

communities  

Completed dialogues as 

planned 

 

Four dialogues per 

province 

April 2007 – March 

2008 

A total of 58 gender 

dialogues have taken 

place (161% of total 

projected)  

 

Concept papers 

(information packs to 

guide dialogues) were 

developed at provincial 

and national levels 

Campaigns – 

16 Days of Activism for 

No Violence against 

Women and Children 

 

Gender-sensitive  

and gender-aware 

communities  

 

Completed campaigns 

as planned on 

provincial/national 

calendar by April 2006 – 

four per province 

April 2007 – March 

2008 

A total of 46 campaigns 

have taken place (127.8 

% of actual against 

planned). Campaigns 

varied in themes and 

involved partnerships 

with external stake-

holders. Examples of 

themes covered 

include: ‘Take Back the 

Night’ (Limpopo); 

‘Female Farm Workers 

and Violence’ and 

‘Virginity Testing and 
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Objective Activity Results/output Indicators Target time-frame Actual performance 

Human Rights’ 

(KwaZulu-Natal); and 

‘Accessing Economic 

Opportunities for 

Women in Urban and 

Peri-urban Areas’ (Free 

State) 

Provincial widowhood 

conferences (required 

external funding) 

 

Gender-sensitive and 

gender-aware 

communities 

Completed conferences 

as planned 

June 2007 – September 

2007 

Provincial hearings on 

widowhood have taken 

place in support of the 

CGE Research Depart-

ment. Summits were 

also held. The findings 

will be fed into infor-

mation interventions in 

the new financial year. 

All provinces held a 

seminar on widowhood 

National widowhood 

conference 

(requires external 

funding) 

  

 

 

 

 

Gender-based violence 

conference 

Gender-sensitive and 

gender-aware 

communities 

Completed conferences 

as planned 

March 2007 The national conference 

on widowhood was 

postponed. It was 

decided to convene it in 

the next financial year, 

as findings were being 

collated and reports 

prepared for publishing 

 

A national conference 

on gender-based 

violence was convened 

on 17 – 20 March 2008 

in Karridene in 

KwaZulu-Natal. A 

declaration was for-

mulated during the 

conference, and will be 

publicised during the 

new financial year. 

Funding for the con-

ference was drawn 

from funds rolled over 

from the previous 

financial year and 

utilised with the 

permission of the 

National Treasury  

 Calendar of events  Detailed national/pro-

vincial calendar 

Completed, agreed 

communicated 

April 2007 PEI worked with the 

Communications 

Department in the 

collection and collation 

of information gathered 

nationally and 

provincially. The 
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Objective Activity Results/output Indicators Target time-frame Actual performance 

calendar of events was 

posted on the CGE 

website 

 Speech writing Well-developed and 

well-researched 

speeches 

 Ongoing Speeches were written 

on request. A total of 

eight speeches were 

researched and pre-

pared for the Offices of 

the CGE Chairperson 

and the Chief Executive 

Officer 

 Gender education at 

schools 

Gender-sensitive and 

gender-aware learners 

Completed dialogues as 

planned 

April 2007 – March 

2008 

Provinces conducted 

workshops within the 

Equality Act workshop 

themes in schools. 

Workshops were 

conducted on the basis 

of requests  

 

In the Free State, 

dialogues and work-

shops were held in 

Welkom, Vijoenskroon 

and Phuthaditjhaba, 

with participants drawn 

from schools in the 

areas. Discussions 

centred on the gen-

dered implications of 

violence at school 

 

In the North-West: 

- Two workshops on 

HIV/AIDS and the 

Equality Act and choice 

of termination of 

pregnancy were held at 

Mmabatho High School 

- A workshop on 

women and children’s 

rights was held at 

Modiredi Primary 

School 

- A discussion group on 

gender and human 

rights was held at the 

Bosasa Youth Centre 

- A workshop on the Bill 

of Rights was held at a 

school in Mira Village 

- A workshop on gender 

issues in school was 

held at the Barolong 



 

 25 

 Commission for Gender Equality Annual Report 2007/2008 

Objective Activity Results/output Indicators Target time-frame Actual performance 

High School 

 

In Mpumalanga and 

KwaZulu-Natal: 

Workshops were held in 

a number of schools on 

the issues of gender-

based violence and 

teenage pregnancy 

 Situational analysis 

(conducted at every 

education intervention) 

Compilation and 

analysis of workshop 

questionnaires  

Available 

data/information 

Ongoing Evaluation forms are 

issued at every work-

shop or dialogue con-

ducted. These forms are 

assessed to provide 

guidance on the quality 

of workshops, relevance 

of materials provided 

etc  

 Popularising Millennium 

Development Goals 

(MDGs)  

Informed public about 

MDGs 

Proactive public input in 

the process 

September – October 

2007 

Education Offices 

conducted workshops 

on this issue. More 

work on the MDGs is 

expected during the 

next financial year. 

 

Challenges 

 

The department functioned without a Head of Department from August onwards and the Education 

Information Officer position remained unfilled for the period under review.  

 

Due to understaffing, it was difficult for the national office to provide effective strategic leadership. Although 

the number of partnerships with external stakeholders increased, more work needs to be done with both civil 

society and local government structures.  

 

The need for a clearly defined outreach strategy that promotes engagement with facilitative structures has 

become apparent if sustainable impact is to be realised. Indeed, considering the geographic vastness of some 

of the provinces (e.g. Limpopo and the Northern Cape), access to the marginalised rural communities proved 

very difficult for Education Officers. The lack of simplified CGE materials translated into local languages also 

limited interaction with semi-literate or illiterate and marginalised rural communities.  

 

2.6.4 Programme: Human Resources 

 

Purpose 

 

The purpose of the Human Resources Department is to ensure that the organisation is appropriately staffed 

and that the environment is conducive for the CGE to achieve its mandate through its human capital. 
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Measurable objectives 

 

 Ensuring improved competency levels; 

 Building a culture of high performance in the organisation; 

 Ensuring compliance with relevant legislation; and 

 Ensuring that there is a fair and transparent recruitment process. 

 

Service delivery objectives 

 

 Submission of HR reports; 

 Monitoring and evaluating the Commission’s compliance with human resources legislation; 

 Percentage of filled vacant posts and period taken to fill those positions; 

 Providing training to employees according to individual development plans; and 

 Putting approved HR policies in place. 

 

Service delivery achievements  

 

In terms of staff training and skills development to enhance capacity building, the Human Resources 

Department identified staff members’ training needs and employees attended courses at Regenesys Business 

School. All the vacant senior managers’ positions have been offered to middle managers in an acting capacity 

and this enhances and/or offers management and skills development to the Deputy Director level.  

 

The work of the department has also ensured:  

 

 Continued implementation of a performance management and development framework;  

 An improvement of the vacancy rate, with vacant and funded management positions filled; 

 Compliance with human resources legislation; and 

 Sound labour relations in the organisation. 

 

Outputs Output performance 

measures/service delivery 

indicators 

Actual performance against target 

Target Actual 

Skills development Adopt a skills development 

plan 

Develop a comprehensive skills 

development report 

Skills development plan has been 

adopted and approved by the CEO 

Sound labour relations Procedures that are compliant 

with relevant legislation 

Have quarterly bilateral meetings with 

organised labour 

Meetings between organised labour 

and the HR committee are held on a 

quarterly basis 

Employment equity Legislative compliance Ensure compliance with relevant 

legislation 

Ongoing 

Recruitment and selection Clear guidelines for 

recruitment process 

Maintain a vacancy rate of 10%. No 

positions are to be vacant for longer 

than two months. Full staff 

complement by April 2007 

Recruitment guidelines have been 

developed but not adopted yet 

Electronic leave system Accurate capturing of leave 

forms 

Electronic leave system to be in place 

by the end of October 2007 

Electronic leave system has been 

installed and 90% of employees have 

been trained to utilise the system and 

apply for leave electronically 

Formulation of an internal 

Human Resources Committee 

Fully functional committee Human Resources Committee to be 

established by June 2006 

Committee has been formulated and 

meets on monthly basis 
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Challenges  

 

Human resource capacity: Capacity has been a major impediment to delivery of the department’s strategic 

objectives. The department has, in the year under review, been understaffed, with the staff complement 

comprising the Human Resources Manager and Administrator.  

 

Recruitment: Though recruitment is a strategic support that the department lends to other CGE divisions, it 

has presented a major challenge. Some provinces are rural/semi-rural and do not have institutions of higher 

learning, so it is difficult to retain and/or make proper placements in good time. A recruitment and retention 

strategy has been drafted that will alleviate this problem in future. This will be presented before Plenary for 

adoption.  

 

High staff turnover: Turnover of senior management has been a major challenge in the year under review. The 

organisation lost four senior managers (HOD of PEI, HOD of Legal, Chief Financial Officer and Human Resources 

Manager) between June 2007 and September 2007. As a result, the organisation embarked on an 

organisational diagnostic process to: 

  

 Identify, analyse and assess the CGE’s skills needs in terms of systems and culture; 

 Recommend a human resources recruitment policy based on best practice to ensure optimal 

running of the institution, driven by results and performance; 

 Institute a coherent human resource recruitment policy to attract quality personnel who will be 

well placed to enhance the organisational mandate; 

 Create clear lines of authority, reporting, governance and roles for the CGE Secretariat and 

Commissioners; and 

 Conduct a skills audit (among other things).  

 

2.6.5 Legal Services 

 

Purpose 

 

The Legal Department investigates complaints and identifies areas of systematic discrimination on the grounds 

of gender or sex in law. It evaluates laws, customs and practices affecting gender equality or the status of 

women that are in force or proposed by Parliament. The department also works in collaboration with other 

institutions or bodies with similar objectives. It litigates in High Courts as Amicus curiae and lodges cases in 

Equality Courts.  

 

Strategic objectives 

 

 Investigating any gender-related issue of its own accord or upon receipt of a complaint and 

endeavouring to resolve any dispute or rectify any act; 

 Evaluating laws, customs, practices and indigenous, personal and family law affecting gender 

equality or the status of women that are in force or proposed by Parliament; 

 Recommending to Parliament the adoption of laws that will promote gender equality and the 

status of women; 

 Monitoring compliance with international conventions, covenants and international charters 

acceded to and ratified by the government that have a bearing on the objectives of the CGE; and 

 Making contributions or submissions to the law-making process, especially with regard to laws 

that affect women adversely and have a bearing on gender equality in South Africa. 
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Service delivery objectives and indicators 
 

Complaints handling: A detailed draft manual on handling and managing complaints is in place. The 

department has, however, been accredited for legal clinic status and the manual and a further chapter on 

criteria and procedures for litigation have to be developed. Once the full draft is in place it will be submitted to 

Plenary for approval. The approved manual will be gazetted, as mandated by Section 12 of the Commission of 

Gender Equality Act 39 of 1996.  

 
Advertising and media complaints: For the year under review, the CGE as a monitoring institution embarked 

on a new strategy to attempt to eradicate derogatory and stereotypical advertising.  

 

Previously, the CGE Legal Department and the Advertising Standards Authority of South Africa (ASASA) had 

established a complementary working relationship. The CGE referred complaints to ASASA to adjudicate and 

ASASA would seek input from the CGE on gender-related complaints. These inputs were provided in the form 

of an opinion. The CGE commissioners used to be included on the ASASA review and appeals 

panel/committee. However, the ASASA rulings were not consistent: in some instances the CGE’s inputs were 

used as a basis for rulings, while in others gender discriminatory complaints were dismissed on the basis that 

they were humorous in nature.  

 

The CGE is an independent body with the power to investigate and monitor compliance, and make 

recommendations and findings. As such, concerns were raised about the ‘independence of the CGE’ when 

collaborating with ASASA. It was noted that it was a matter of practice within the ASASA complaints system 

that one could not appeal or intervene in any other process with ASASA if an opinion had been provided. In 

light of the CGE’s constitutional mandate and Section 10(1)(a) of the CGE Act, which states that the 

Commission shall be independent, concerns were raised regarding the ASASA process. In providing opinions as 

an ‘expert’ body to ASASA on gender-related complaints, the CGE could be precluded from later intervening as 

a party in a matter it had provided an opinion on. This meant the CGE’s independence would be tainted once 

opinions were submitted and, as a result, the CGE could be precluded from intervening in relevant matters, 

either as a party or on behalf of another party.  

 

According to the new strategy, the CGE will lodge such complaints either in its own name or on behalf of 

clients. 

 

Complaints handled during 2007/2008 financial year: There were 136 complaints carried forward from 

2006/2007 to 2007/008. Five hundred files were opened during 2007/2008 financial year, which means that 

636 files were handled by the Legal Department.  

 

The table below reflects the nature and number of complaints opened and handled per province. This does not 

reflect the complaints the department received and referred to the relevant institution or where a file was not 

opened. Gauteng received 116 complaints, the most of all provinces, followed by Limpopo Province, with 106. 

The Northern Cape received 10 complaints, the lowest of all provinces. This might be attributed to the fact 

that the province did not have a Legal Officer for part of 2007/2008. Statistics of complaints received for the 

year under review indicate that most complaints related to maintenance, divorce, gender discrimination and 

domestic violence. 
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Nature of 

complaint 

Gauteng Limpopo Western 

Cape 

Mpumalanga North-

West 

Free 

State 

KwaZulu-

Natal 

Eastern 

Cape 

Northern 

Cape 

Total 

Gender 

discrimination 

17 2 21 4 3 4 10 10 2 73 

Domestic 

violence 

11 20 11 8 0 6 12 4 1 73 

Maintenance 28 33 9 12 6 16 24 18 2 148 

Divorce 16 11 7 3 1 1 1 1 2 143 

Custody and 

access 

1 5 3 2 5 1 1 3 1 22 

Estate 10 5 0 7 6 7 0 2 0 37 

Gender-based 

violence 

3 7 3 1 0 0 9 12 0 35 

Sexual 

harassment  

7 4 19 1 0 10 5 12 0 58 

Labour 7 9 8 1 4 2 1 1 0 33 

Unlawful 

eviction 

1 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 7 

Claim for 

restitution 

1 1 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 5 

Tradition/ 

culture 

6 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 8 

Other 8 6 23 8 10 8 22 7 2 94 

Total 

 

116 106 106 50 35 55 85 73 10 636 

 

7% 
5% 

13% 

7% 

0% 
4% 

1% 3% 3% 0%  3% 3% 

51% 

Gender discrimination 

Domestic violence 

Maintenance 

Divorce 

Custody and access 

Estate 

Gender-based violence 

Sexual harassment  

Labour 

Unlawful eviction 

Claim for restitution 

Tradition/culture 

Others 

Total 

Gauteng Province 
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Files closed during 2007/8: Of the 636 complaints the Legal Department handled during 2007/2008, 429 

complaints were finalised and closed. The following table reflects the files brought forward, opened, closed 

and carried forward to the 2008/2009 financial year. Two hundred and seven complaints were carried forward 

from 2007/2008 to the 2008/2009 financial year. 

 

 Files brought forward from the 2006/2007 financial year: 136 

 Total number of files opened: 500 

 Total number of files closed: 429 

 Total number of files carried forward to 2008/9 financial year: 207  

 

The total number of files handled by the CGE during the 2007/2008 financial year increased by more than 40% 

compared with the 2006/2007 financial year. This may be attributed to the fact that Legal Officers are 

employed in most of the provinces and the Complaints Officers from Head Office visit the provinces where 

Legal Officer vacancies exist. 

Province Brought forward from 

2006/2007 to 2007/2008 

Opened files Closed files 

2007/8 

Carried forward to 

2008/2009  

Gauteng 17 99 92 24 

Limpopo 25 81 74 32 

Western Cape 27 79 72 34 

Mpumalanga 18 32 17 33 

North-West 2 33 28 7 

Free State 16 39 37 18 

KwaZulu-Natal 16 69 53 32 

Eastern Cape 14 59 51 22 

Northern Cape 1 9 5 5 

Total 

 

136 500 429 207 
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Walk-in and telephonic consultations: A total of 281 walk-in/telephonic consultations were held by Legal 

Officers nationally. 

 

Court monitoring: The department monitored 55 Equality Courts around the country. The findings were not 

different from the previous financial year. The courts were not known by the public and they were not 

operational. The Legal Department also monitored 44 court cases, where the responsibilities of the Legal 

Officer were to monitor court proceedings without actively being involved in the matter. 

  

Campaigns and workshops: The department, together with the PEI department, conducted 210 workshops 

and campaigns. The focus of these was to educate members of the public about their rights, the existence of 

the Equality Courts and how they operate, and other legislation relevant in the promotion of gender equality. 

These workshops were conducted in rural and urban areas. 

 

Noteworthy cases/complaints handled: The table below provides a summary of some cases where the CGE 

lodged cases with the Equality Court or joined as amicus curiae in High Courts, as well as those investigated: 
 

Matter 

 

Category Status 

Z Mpanza v 

Sibusiso Cele and 

others 

Equality Court 

matter 

(discrimination) 

The CGE’s KwaZulu-Natal office initiated this matter before the Equality Court in Umlazi. In this matter, 

the applicant was stripped of her pants and had her family house burnt down for allegedly defying a ban 

on women wearing pants at Umlazi’s T-Section. The ban undermines equality between men and women 

and, as a result, offended the applicant’s right to human dignity. The applicant sought relief in the 

following: a declaratory order that the ban be removed and prohibited from being practised, as it 

discriminates against women on the basis of gender in terms of the Promotion of Equality and Prevention 

of Unfair Discrimination Act (Pepuda) of 2000; payment of damages in respect of dignity, pain and 

suffering, emotional and psychological suffering; and further and or alternative relief. The matter was set 

down for 9 to 11 April 2008.  

S v Dumakude and High Court matter The CGE picked up the matter of the Kwa Makutha muti killings from the media and initiated a monitoring 

0 

100 

200 
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500 

600 

Free State 

KwaZulu-Natal 

Province 

 Gauteng  

Limpopo 

Western Cape 

Mpumalanga 
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Total 
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others (muti killings) process. On 26 October the matter was postponed for directives in the Magistrates’ Court until directions 

from the Department of Public Prosecutions for the matter to be heard in the High Court. The matter was 

set down for trial from 26 May to 27 June 2008.  

Shayamoya killings Magistrates’ Court 

matter (serial 

killings)  

The Commission is monitoring this matter. The bail hearing was adjudicated on 9 and 27 November 2007, 

with further postponements following. On 4 March 2008 the matter was postponed for further 

investigation to 23 April 2008.  

Amibi v Bronx Club 

owner  

Equality Court 

matter (racial 

discrimination) 

The complainant in this matter was black. He went to a night club with a white friend, but was denied 

entry. When the matter was taken up by the complainant’s friend, it became apparent that the remarks 

made by the security guard were racial and discriminatory. The CGE received this complaint from 777-

Campaign Alliance, which it is part of. Documents were served in the Equality Court and also to the 

respondent, who responded to the allegations put to him. The matter was placed on the roll for the 

direction hearings on 18 April 2008.  

Zoliswa Nkonyana Magistrates’ Court 

matter (hate 

crime) 

The CGE is monitoring this matter. The deceased Ms Nkonyana was stabbed and stoned to death by a 

mob as a result of her sexual orientation. The matter was postponed several times until it was transferred 

to the Regional Court and finally placed on the roll for 21 April 2008.  

Sylvester v 

Crossroads 

Distributions (Pty) 

Ltd 

Equality Court 

matter (racial 

discrimination) 

The CGE is handling this matter on approach by the complainant. He was employed by the respondent. 

After his contract was terminated, the respondent put out a tender for managing the wash bay, which the 

complainant responded to. He was later notified that he was unsuccessful in that his ‘white’ colleague had 

been awarded the tender. The respondent justified this on the basis of price differentials and not in terms 

of black economic empowerment principles. The matter was set down for direction hearings on 25 March 

2008.  

Pensionable age High Court matter  This matter has been rendered moot by the Finance Minister’s budget for 2008. This matter was heard by 

the Pretoria High Court on 11 and 12 September 2007. We are still awaiting judgement. The matter 

concerns a constitutional challenge of the provisions of Section 10 of the Social Assistance Act 13 of 2004 

(‘the Act’) and Regulation 2(2) of the regulations made in terms of Section 32 of the Act, published in the 

Government Gazette No. 27316 of 2 February 2005 (‘the Regulation’). The matter raises important 

constitutional issues concerning the rights of women and men between the ages of 60 and 64 who 

receive, or should be entitled to receive, old age pension grants in terms of the Act. 

 

The purpose of social security is to assist people who cannot afford to support themselves, and therefore 

the appropriate deciding factor should not be based on gender but rather on who qualifies in economic 

terms. It is acknowledged that women are economically, politically and socially more vulnerable than 

men, but allowing that category of men who cannot economically afford to support themselves to receive 

pension grants will not in any manner affect the wellbeing of women. More women would still qualify if 

the age threshold was removed and economic affordability was used as a threshold. The CGE, as a gender-

sensitive institution, supports the argument brought forth by the two amici curiae organisations (CALS and 

CLC) that the differentiation is irrational and clearly against the constitutional commitment of providing 

social security to people who cannot economically provide for themselves as envisaged by Section 27 (1) 

of the Constitution. The CGE is monitoring this matter, as envisaged by Section 11 of the CGE, because it 

was not possible to join as amicus curiae due to the rules of the court. 

Shilubane matter  Constitutional 

Court litigation 

(chieftaincy) 

A summary of the facts of this case is contained in the previous two Annual Reports and will therefore not 

be repeated here, except to add that the matter is now before the Constitutional Court. This matter was 

heard before the Constitutional Court on 27 November 2007. The CGE is acting as amicus curiae (friend of 

court). The matter is on appeal from the Supreme Court of Appeal. The matter raises important issues 

concerning the rights of women and customary law. At its core, it raises the issue of the role of the courts 

in instances where communities have taken steps to develop their customary law norms and practices to 

bring them in line with the Constitution. In this matter, the CGE adopts a position that where a community 

has, of its own accord, developed its customary law norms and practices so as to bring them in line with 

the spirit and purpose of the Constitution, courts must as far as possible recognise such a development. 

 

The General Secretary of the Congress of Traditional Leaders of South Africa (Contralesa) appeared before 

Court with the view of applying for his organisation to be admitted as amicus curiae and applying for 

postponement of the matter to get an opportunity to read the pleadings filed by parties before the court. 

He made his application (which was not served) and even though it was not clear what the organisation’s 
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Collaboration: In our quest to attain gender equality in our society, the CGE is expected to forge a good 

working relationship with other organisations, such as Chapter 9 institutions, NGOs and the government. Our 

collaboration with these institutions plays a very important role in realising our mandate. During the 

2007/2008 financial year the Legal Department collaborated with various institutions and/or NGOs on an ad 

hoc basis. 

 

Service delivery achievements 

 

Objective 1: Investigate gender-related issues of own accord and/or upon receipt of complaint 

Specific objectives 

 

Activities Indicator Time-frame Actual performance 

Investigate complaints Complaints processing and 

management, taking 

statements from 

complainants, opening files, 

responding to complaints 

 

Conciliation and mediation 

More complaints are 

being reported to the 

Legal Department 

Ongoing A total of 500 new files were opened 

during the period under review; 429 files 

were closed; 207 files were pending and 

carried forward to the 2008/2009 

financial year. This number does not 

include walk-in and telephonic 

complaints, which do not fall within the 

mandate of the CGE and have been 

referred to other institutions (full report 

below)  

Produce policy on com-

plaints management: 

Managing Complaints 

handbook 

Draft complaints processing 

and management policy 

 

Policy on complaints 

management handbook 

is in place 

 Draft complaints procedure manual is in 

place 

Acquire an electronic 

legal library 

Liaise with different service 

providers and the IT 

Department 

Jutastat Online is in 

place 

September 2007 Jutastat Online has been set up for com-

plaints processing and research purposes. 

Legal Officers and Legal Committee 

Commissioners have access to the online 

library  

Put file management 

system in place and 

archive old complaints 

 

Service providers have been 

engaged 

Meeting with Optiplan 

and other service 

providers has taken 

place  

 

 Optiplan has delivered cabinets for file 

management in all provinces and Head 

Office. The process of archiving com-

plaints has not yet commenced 

 

Put electronic 

complaints handling 

system in place 

   

 

Not met. Service providers have been 

engaged, but the IT system has to be re-

worked for the system to be put in place 

 

 

interest was and/or what its argument will be, Contralesa’s application for amicus curiae was granted. It 

was ordered to serve and file its papers by Tuesday 4 December 2007 and the response thereto by other 

parties by Tuesday 11 December 2007.  

 

Application for postponement was refused and it was held that Contralesa’s argument will only be 

presented on paper. The justices indicated their regret that Contralesa had come in at this late stage, and 

indicated that its reasons for not following the court rules was not sound enough, but it would be allowed 

to join as amicus curiae. 

 

Argument from all parties was heard and judgement has been reserved. 
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Objective 2: Litigation 

Specific objectives Activities  Indicator  Time-frame  Actual performance 

Develop concept paper 

on litigation 

 

   Litigation concept paper has been 

developed and is on record 

 

Attain law clinic status 

 

Apply for accreditation to 

the relevant Law Societies. 

Applications have been 

lodged, except in provinces 

with vacancies 

 

Accreditation 

 

 

Depends on 

individual Law 

Societies 

 

Accreditation for law clinic status has 

been awarded for Head Office, 

KwaZulu-Natal and Western Cape for 

2008. The department is still awaiting 

correspondence from the Law Society 

of the Northern Provinces advising 

whether provinces that fall within the 

Law Society can be treated as 

branches or whether new 

applications have to be submitted for 

them (this affects Mpumalanga, 

Limpopo and North-West offices) 

Internal and colla-

borative legal strategic 

intervention sessions 

  

 

  Ongoing 

 

The department made inputs on the 

ICCPR country report. A meeting was 

held with the DOJ in this regard. The 

department is awaiting the final 

report for evaluation 

 

Various meetings have been held 

with various institutions in the quest 

to attain equality, including JMC, 

SAHRC, LRC, DOJ, POWA, Equality 

Project and CALS on ad hoc basis.  

Litigating in the Equality 

Court  

 The Mpanza matter 

 

Ongoing 

 

The matter was heard on 11 and 12 

March 2008 (full report under 

litigation, below)  

Litigating as amicus 

curiae  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meetings with Chapter 9 

institutions and orga-

nisations such as the Legal 

Resources Centre, CALS and 

the Women’s Legal Centre 

to identify cases before 

courts that involve 

discrimination on the basis 

of gender. Participation as 

amicus curiae 

 

Applying to High Courts and 

Constitutional Court to be 

admitted as amicus curiae  

Cases to join as amicus 

curiae identified 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Awaiting judgement for Pensionable 

Age and Shilubane matters 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

 35 

 Commission for Gender Equality Annual Report 2007/2008 

 

Objective 3: Evaluation and monitoring 

Specific objectives 

 

Activities Indicator Time-frame Actual performance 

Make submissions to 

Parliament 

Research and identify Bills 

that affect gender equality; 

interact with stakeholders; 

draft submissions 

Amendments being 

filtered into legislation 

and/or Acts 

Ongoing A concept document has been drafted 

by Parliamentary Officer that frames 

the CGE’s approach to submissions. 

Seven submissions have been made 

for 2007/2008  

Law reform 

 

 

Audit of legislation: meet 

with the South African Law 

Reform Commission (SALRC) 

with a view to amend 

gender-discriminatory laws 

 

Research and identify old 

legislation that affects 

gender equality through 

complaints received by the 

department and point to 

loopholes in the Acts. Eva-

luate them and submit 

report/recommendations to 

the SALRC 

Meeting with SALRC has 

taken place 

Ongoing Full report in Parliamentary Officer’s 

report below. Collaboration and/or 

partnership formed with the SALRC  

 

 

 

The actual activities feeding into 

scrutinising pre-1994 legislation is 

scheduled to take place in the 

2008/2009 financial year 

Domestication of the 
Convention on the 
Elimination of all Forms 
of Discrimination Against 
Women (CEDAW) 

Simplify CEDAW and 

popularise it internally for 

provinces to use in 

workshops 

 

Done through the PEI 

Department 

 

 PowerPoint presentation is in place 

 

Monitor South Africa’s 
reports/ 
submissions on 
international 
instruments 
 
International/regional: 

obtain membership or 

observer status: UN 

Commission on Human 

Rights 

Make sure South Africa 

complies with international 

instruments’ requirements 

 

 

Obtain membership AU 

Protocol on the Rights of 

Women 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal department engaged with the 

DOJ on the first ICCPR country report 

 

 

Objective 4: Equality Court monitoring 

 

Specific objectives Activities Indicator Time-frame Actual performance 

 

Equality Court 

monitoring 

Visiting Equality Courts to 

determine their functionality 

Preliminary report on 

Equality Court monitoring 

has been completed 

 Legal Department monitored 44 

Equality Courts in the period under 

review 
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Parliamentary Office report 

 

Objective Output Service delivery 

indicator 

Performance 

Parliamentary liaison and 

monitoring 

Monitoring and 

interventions in the 

legislative process 

Submissions on proposed 

legislation 

1. Submission to Portfolio Committee on Home Affairs (26 

April 2007) 

 

Film And Publications Amendment Bill [B27 – 2007 

2. Submission to the national Ministry of Education (28 May 

2007) 

 

Education Laws Amendment Bill [Gg number 29868 – 2007] 

3. Comments on the Employment Equity Act on invitation by 

the National Portfolio Committee on Labour (31 July 2007) 

4. Submission to the Portfolio Committee on Social 

Development (8 August 2007) 

 

The Children’s Amendment Bill *B19b – 2006] 

6. Comments on acquisition of land by foreigners in RSA (12 

December 2007) 

 

Submitted comments on the report and recommendations 

presented to the Minister of Agriculture and Land Affairs in 

August 2007  

7. Submission to the Department of Justice and Constitutional 

Development (11 February 2008) 

 

Constitution 15
th

 Amendment Bill [B6D – 2003] 

8. Submission to the Portfolio Committee on Justice and 

Constitutional development (11 February 2008) 

 

Jurisdiction of Regional Courts Bill [B48 – 2007] 

9. Comments on the Draft Domestic Partnerships Bill and 

Marriage Bill made to the Department of Home Affairs (15 

February 2008) 

 

Comments submitted to the draft bills as per Gg Number 

30663 of 14 January 2008 

10. Comments on the Draft Public Finance Management Bill 

(10 March 2008) 

 

Comments on draft Bill made to National Treasury. 

Presentations to 

Parliamentary 

Committees 

1. Presentation to Joint Monitoring Committee for the 

Improvement of Quality of Life and Status of Women  

 

CGE Annual Report 2006/2007 and budget 2007/2008 (1 June 

2007) 

2. Presentation to Joint Monitoring Committee on the 

Improvement of Quality of Life and Status of Women 

 

Subject – deepening collaboration and the relationship 

between the Joint Monitoring Committee and the CGE (14 

September 2007) 
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Objective Output Service delivery 

indicator 

Performance 

Attend Parliamentary 

meetings  

10 committee meetings attended by the CGE Parliamentary 

Officer  

Evaluation of legislation 1. Identified the need for legal recognition of Muslim and 

other religious marriages. There is significant prejudice 

caused to spouses and children due to non-recognition of 

religious and certain customary marriages. This right is 

guaranteed in Section 15(3) of the Constitution 

 

Initiatives are under way to address the status of Muslim 

marriages 

2. Identified the need for legislation to combat ‘trafficking’ in 

humans. The CGE is liaising with the South African Law 

Reform Commission in this regard 

 

2.6.6 Programme: Communication 

 

Introduction 

 
The aim of this programme is to raise awareness on gender equality and the work of the Commission through 

campaigns, publications, media liaison and disseminating promotional material. It is also responsible for 

creating a communication-friendly environment within the Commission and between the Commission and its 

stakeholders. 

 

The CGE recognises communications as an important vehicle to transmit messages of gender awareness and 

gender transformation to the public and to targeted audiences. To enhance the work of the CGE and to 

effectively deal with requests from the media for information and comments, a Communications Office was 

established and resourced. Key functions of this unit include media interaction and public relations. 

 

Measurable objectives 

 

 Developing and implementing the communications strategy of the Commission to promote 

gender equality awareness; 

 Fostering favourable relations with local and national media to receive optimal, positive 

coverage;  

 Increasing awareness of the CGE and promoting its work and corporate image in local 

communities and among external target audiences; and 

 Promoting the CGE and its work in all forms of the media. 

 

Overview of service delivery 

 

Media liaison: In the year under review, television, radio and print media were effectively utilised to promote 

the programmes and projects of the CGE through media briefings and press statements. The Communications 

unit coordinated approximately 60 interviews with key CGE role players, namely the Chairperson, CEO and 

some provincial coordinators. On the CGE’s own initiative, the department prepared and issued 29 press 

statements on a variety of current and developing gender-related stories.  
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Media monitoring: The CGE has adopted a proactive approach to dealing with the media. The 

Communications Department continues to publicise the work of the CGE and its achievements. The unit 

monitors print, broadcast and online media on a daily basis.  

 

External media monitoring is conducted by the Government Communications and Information Services (GCIS). 

This function is made more effective by information sourced from organisations such as Media Monitoring 

South Africa and MSA Telesales.  

 

Through partnerships with community radio stations and the SABC, the months of August (Women’s Month) 

and November/December (16 Days of Activism for No Violence against Women and Children) were dedicated 

to educating and raising awareness about gender-based violence. 

 

The print media outlets utilised included the Mail & Guardian, City Press, BUA (GCIS publication), Sunday 

Times, Sowetan, Daily Dispatch and Sunday World.  

  

Broadcast media coverage was secured on several radio stations, with the issuance of press statements and 

provision of interviews and commentaries on various subjects. Broadcast media used to reach the public 

included Kaya FM, Bush Radio, JoziFM, Talk Radio 702, eTV, SABC Radio (SA FM and African language stations 

such as Thobela FM, Lesedi FM and Ligwalagwala FM). 

 

The talk show/phone-in format of the radio programmes we participated in enabled direct interaction 

between the CGE and the larger public. As part of the 16 Days of Activism awareness effort, the CGE entered 

into a joint partnership with a major radio station for a World AIDS Day live broadcast, which had a special 

focus on women and children. The CGE also reached the public through advertorials. 

 
Website and intranet: In the period under review, the Commission revamped its website to increase its 

efficacy as a valuable, interactive source of information. The website publishes an extensive list of documents, 

reports and general information on the workings of the Commission. The website also offers links to other 

human rights bodies, a number of civil society organisations and relevant local and international links. The 

Commission is in the process of establishing an intranet to enhance internal communication.  

 

Service delivery achievements 

 

Objective Activity Indicator Time-frame Actual performance 

Develop and implement the 

communication strategy of 

the Commission 

 

Foster favourable relations 

with local and national 

media to receive optimal 

and positive reporting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Organise and coordinate an 

editors’ breakfast 

 

Increased number of 

gender stories 

April 2007 – 

March 2008 

Achieved: publication and reporting of 

gender-sensitive information by the 

media  

Organise and coordinate 

media/press briefings for 

provincial media 

Increased numbers of 

gender and CGE stories 

in provincial media  

Ongoing Achieved: five media/press briefing 

held with provincial media 

 

Media profile has risen and more 

positive than negative coverage is 

received 

Prepare media statements 

and media releases 

Increased number of 

South Africans aware of 

the CGE’s operations 

Ongoing Achieved: 28 media statements 

released 

Updating gender and media 

directory 

Increased number of 

women experts quoted 

in the media; resource 

people easily accessible 

September 

2007 

Achieved: the Commission continues to 

update the gender directory 
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Objective Activity Indicator Time-frame Actual performance 

Coordinate SABC radio slots  

 

Increased number of 

people in South Africa 

more informed about 

gender issues 

 

April 2007 – 

March 2008 

Achieved: nine radio slots (one per pro-

vince) and 60 media interviews 

 

Media profile has risen and more 

positive than negative coverage is 

received  

Media advertising  Number of print and 

broadcast advertise-

ments about the CGE 

and its work 

Ongoing Achieved: four print adverts and five 

broadcast adverts placed 

 

Increase awareness of CGE 

in local communities and 

among external target 

audiences 

Establish partnerships with 

the community radio sector 

Provide gender content 

for programmes 

 

 

Facilitate a sustainable 

community radio 

gender equality 

programme 

April 2007 – 

March 2008 

Achieved: Commission has partnered 

with 13 community radio slots on 

various projects. 

 

Achieved 

Promote awareness of the 

CGE and its work in all forms 

of the media 

Placing newspaper supple-

ments and advertorials for 

targeted events 

Build interest and 

publicity on CGE work 

on major events – i.e. 

Women’s Month and 

the 16 Days of Activism 

campaign 

Ongoing Achieved: eight supplements appeared 

in various newspapers 

 

Increased exposure of the Commission 

Regular contributions to 

selected gender journals (e.g. 

Agenda, Succeed) 

CGE profile increased Ongoing Achieved  

Speech-writing and Power-

Point presentations  

Archived speeches and 

presentations 

Ongoing Achieved: two speeches and one 

PowerPoint presentation completed 

Administering telephonic and 

walk-in enquiries  

Record of telephone 

enquiries and visitors 

Ongoing Achieved: the Commission continues to 

provide information to students, 

organisations, government 

departments and general members of 

the community 

Development of signage and 

wall images  

Availability of signage 

and wall images at and 

in CGE offices 

May 2007 Achieved: the Commission continues to 

work with management of Constitution 

Hill in developing well marked and 

visible signage and wall images 

Motion advertising and video 

playing 

Availability of motion 

advertising and video 

players in CGE offices 

May 2007 Achieved: due to security reasons this 

function is on hold until all concerns 

have been cleared in provincial offices 

Arrange and manage 

exhibitions 

Availability of exhibition 

reports 

Ongoing Achieved: 12 exhibitions arranged and 

manage by the Commission 

Administering CGE online 

information and website  

Online information 

directed to relevant 

CGE members 

 

Updated website 

Ongoing Achieved: website updated daily and 

when requested 

 

Achieved: Online information 

administration 

Advertising on radio, in news-

papers and on billboards 

CGE profile increased For specific 

campaigns 

Achieved: 13 radio adverts placed 

Building relationships with 

stakeholders (e.g. ASASA, the 

SABC, journalists) 

 Ongoing Achieved  
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Challenges 

 

The Communications Department continues to encounter problems monitoring internal and external 

communications in the nine provinces. This is mostly due to a lack of established proper communications 

channels in all CGE offices. The unit could work more effectively with additional human capacity. A 

spokesperson is needed to deal specifically with media issues while the rest of the staff focuses on other areas 

of communications. 

 

2.6.7 Programme: Information Technology 

 

Purpose 

 

The IT unit of the Commission processes and provides solutions to ensure that gender transformation is 

realised. The department procures IT equipment and services, manages IT infrastructure, identifies needs and 

trains staff members. It ensures that all processes and business operations are aligned to the CGE’s core 

deliverables. 

 

Objectives 

 Draft and implement IT policies; 

 Manage IT service level agreements with service providers; 

 Manage the IT network; 

 Server management; 

 Research on new technologies to assist the CGE; 

 Identify needs for IT training for staff members and provide advice; 

 Ensure information security on the CGE network; 

 Support video-conferencing; and 

 Support end-users on a daily basis. 

 

Overview of organisational environment 

 

The IT Department is comprised of two positions, namely Deputy Director and Assistant Director. The Assistant 

Director resigned in September 2007 and the position remained vacant for the remainder of the financial year. 

This vacancy had implications for the implementation and finalisation of the information technology 

programme of action.  

 

The CGE contracted external service providers to assist in the effective running of the information 

management systems. The company Axolute Technologies was contracted to assist in maintaining the IT 

infrastructure at provincial level. Integr8 IT was contracted to maintain the off-site back-up system of the 

Commission as well as the front-end server and mailing system.  

 

Panasonic has been contracted to maintain the Commission’s switchboard system at national level and in 

some provincial offices. Other offices in the provinces are managed by Telkom. Video-conferencing 

functionality has been installed in all provinces and Axolute Technologies is assisting in maintaining the system 

throughout the provinces. A biometrics security system has been installed. This system will minimise loss of IT 

equipment, and control and monitor security on a full-time basis to ensure that all CGE assets are protected 

and secured at all times.  
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Service delivery achievements 

  

Specific objectives Activities  Indicator Time-frame  Actual performance 

 

IT policies Drafting IT policies and 

procedures  

Draft policies have been 

developed 

Ongoing Cellphone and laptop policies have 

been drafted and implemented. IT 

disposal and disaster recovery policies 

have been drafted. An IT infrastructure 

policy has been implemented 

End-user training Provide basic computer 

training to all staff 

members 

Basic computer training 

available to assist staff 

members with technological 

changes/challenges 

Ongoing 

 

Computer training has taken place in 

Mpumalanga, Gauteng and at Head 

Office; video-conferencing training has 

taken place in all provinces 

Telephone system Installing telephone 

system in all provinces 

Engage with Telkom to install 

PABX in all provinces 

July 2007 PABX has been installed in Mpuma-

langa and Gauteng. Other provincial 

offices are serviced by Panasonic 

Maintenance of the 

PABX system  

Proper and well 

functioning telephone 

systems in all provinces 

Smooth running of the CGE’s 

business 

Ongoing Panasonic (external service provider) 

manages the system. Minimal problems 

have been experienced 

Internet service 

provider 

Providing gateway for 

CGE internet  

Faster internet access Ongoing PCB (external service provider) 

provides this service. The system is 

managed well 

Provincial IT 

maintenance 

Maintenance and 

support 

Effective and efficient IT 

systems 

 Ongoing Axolute (external service provider) 

manages maintenance in the provinces 

Service desk solution 

 

Install service desk soft-

ware to track requests  

 

Employed service desk 

person 

Service providers have made 

presentation 

 

December 2007 

 

Draft solution is in place 

Video-conferencing 

 

Installing reliable video-

conferencing equipment 

All provinces have a video-

conferencing facility 

November 2007 

 

Questek and Axolute have done the 

upgrade and completed installation 

Network upgrade 

 

Upgrade from Frame 

Express to VPN with DRP 

Contract has been signed with 

Integr8 IT 

December 2007 

 

Completed 

Disaster recovery 

upgrade 

Provide an off-site 

disaster recovery plan 

Contract has been signed with 

Integr8 IT 

December 2007 

 

Achieved: Interg8 IT (external service 

provider) manages the process 

Back-up procedures 

upgrade 

Daily back-ups and 

periodic storage offsite  

Successful back-up of data and 

monitoring 

Ongoing 2007 

 

Achieved 

 

2.6.8 Programme: Research 

 

Purpose 

 

The Research Department informs and supports the objectives of the CGE, notably: monitoring all organs of 

society to ensure that gender equality is respected, protected, developed and attained; assessing legislation 

from a gender perspective; monitoring South Africa’s progress towards gender equality and compliance with 

international norms; liaising and interacting with institutions, bodies, authorities and civil society to promote 

gender equality. The Research Department conducts its monitoring and evaluation through two broad 

programmes, focusing on monitoring and evaluation of the gender dimensions of: 

  

(1) Social powers and capabilities and economic opportunities; and  

(2) Political agencies.  
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Each programme implements a number of research projects. A summary of the main research activities is 

provided below, followed by a qualitative impact assessment of the work of the Research Department.  

 

Objectives  

 

To fulfil the mandate of the Commission in terms of the promotion and protection of gender equality, the 

Research Department is committed to pursuing the following primary objectives:  

 

 Promoting and protecting gender equality; 

 Tracking, documenting and analysing literature, policies and reports relevant to the mandate of 

the CGE and its research programmes; 

 Planning and developing research programmes, concept papers, research proposals, project 

designs and information to inform programmes and processes of the Commission; 

 Monitoring and evaluating the transformation of gender relations with reference to: political, 

economic and social power; institutions, sectors and services; disadvantaged individuals, 

communities and social groups; unfair discriminatory practices; and taking active measures to 

promote gender equality and redress persistent disparities; 

 Reporting on gender analysis, developing evidence-based recommendations and providing input 

into practice, policy, budgeting, advocacy, awareness-raising, public education and law reform in 

the public and private sectors to promote, protect and attain gender equality; and 

 Creating strategic linkages with researchers and research institutions nationally, regionally and 

internationally to ensure effective collaboration, critical review and development of gender 

research capacity, discourse and frameworks. 

 

Overview of service delivery environment 

 
Human resource capacity: This has been a major impediment towards the delivery of projects as each 

province is staffed with one researcher who covers a range of projects within specified time-frames. This staff 

shortage makes it difficult for researchers to cover the vast South African landscape and to sustain progress 

that has been achieved in fulfilling the mandate of the CGE.  

 

Implementation of projects and programmes has been impeded by several factors. Some offices have 

experienced staff shortages since the inception of the Research Department in 2006. The Northern Cape office 

has, for example, been without a researcher since 2006. The internal procedures, policies, rules and 

regulations (PPR&R) of the CGE promotes the movement of staff from one provincial office to another through 

transfers. This has occurred in four offices and has affected implementation. The current Head Office 

researcher comes from the Mpumalanga office (March 2007), the Eastern Cape researcher was appointed in 

the Western Cape office as an intern (March 2007) and the Free State researcher moved to the Western Cape 

in March 2007. Other factors, such as two staff members taking maternity leave, affected the Gender in the 

Private Sector report.  

 
Information technology equipment: Valuable and resourceful information was lost at Head Office and in the 

provincial offices. Other external processes that affect the unit, such as working with internal auditors and 

putting up systems and protocols through the risk management processes have also affected service delivery. 

The department’s response to the ad hoc evaluations of the CGE has also impacted on implementation. The 

Research Department’s move to the Resource Centre also affected staff delivery. 
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Service delivery objectives and indicators 

 

1. Gender analysis of political power agency 

Programme Project/focus Application/input 

activity 

Outputs/outcomes Actual performance 

against target 

Target Actual 

Monitoring and evaluating 

of gender mainstreaming 

in government structures 

Development and imple-

mentation of monitoring 

and evaluation instrument 

for gender mainstreaming 

 

Project reference group 

established; barometer 

piloted in five national 

government departments, 

one provincial government 

department, one 

municipality and three 

premiers’ offices  

Electronic instrument 

available; policy and legis-

lation scan available; 

report on trends and 

indicators available 

 

February 

2008 

Achieved  

Monitoring and evaluation 

of gender mainstreaming 

in provincial government 

departments  

Five provincial government 

departments monitored 

Assessment reports 

discussed with relevant 

structures  

February 

2008 

Achieved 

Monitoring and evaluation 

of gender mainstreaming 

in local government 

Seven municipalities 

monitored 

Assessment reports 

discussed with relevant 

structures 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

Support for women’s 

quota and affirmative 

action 

Interview data analysed, 

policies and budgets 

assessed 

Assessment of support for 

women’s quota and 

affirmative action available 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

Effectiveness and 

accessibility of gender 

machinery 

 

Questionnaires developed 

and administered to 

structures within 

provincial gender 

machineries 

Assessment of capacity of 

provincial gender 

machineries available 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

 

2. Gender analysis of economic power opportunities 

Programme Project/focus Application/input 

activity 

Outputs/outcomes Actual performance 

against target 

Target Actual 

Monitoring gender 

equality in the private 

sector 

 

Employment equity and 

affirmative action policies 

 

Pilot study conducted; 

data log sheets developed 

and completed; policy 

analysis protocol 

developed and applied 

Report on assessment of 

compliance to policy and 

legal framework in 

progress  

 

February 

2008 

Not achieved 

(see imple-

mentation 

problems)  

 

3. Gender analysis of social power capabilities 

Programme Projects Application/input 

activity 

Outputs/outcomes Actual performance 

against target 

Target Actual 

Monitor mainstreaming of 

gender in HIV/AIDS 

programmes 

 

Compliance with interna-

tional standards for 

orphaned and vulnerable 

children (OVC); 

 

 

 

Checklist administered to 

government departments 

and NGOs in the OVC 

sector 

 

 

 

Research report available 

on HIV/AIDS; recommen-

dations for continuous 

monitoring and evaluation 

of gender mainstreaming 

in HIV/AIDS programmes 

developed 

February 

2008 

Achieved 
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3. Gender analysis of social power capabilities 

Programme Projects Application/input 

activity 

Outputs/outcomes Actual performance 

against target 

Target Actual 

Investigate gender 

dynamics of HIV/AIDS 

programmes 

 

HIV/AIDS seminars 

conducted in a number of 

provinces  

Monitor gender 

awareness, attitudes and 

understanding of gender 

equality 

 

Assess compliance to 

policy in respect of gender 

mainstreaming in the 

education sector  

 

Questionnaires 

administered to 

government officials in 

national and provincial 

education departments 

and to teachers’ unions 

 

Commented on 

development of 

qualifications and 

standards for gender 

equality and women 

empowerment 

Research report on gender 

in education available 

 

 

 

 

 

Input into standards and 

qualifications registered by 

South African 

Qualifications Authority 

for gender equality and 

women empowerment 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

Monitor and evaluate res-

ponses to reduce gender-

based violence 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

National implementation 

of the Victim’s Charter 

plan 

Developed framework for 

monitoring gender aspects 

of the Victim’s Charter 

Implementation Plan 

Monitoring framework 

integrated in monitoring 

and evaluation of the 

Victims Charter 

Implementation Plan 

(published by DoJ) 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

National action plan to 

end violence against 

women and children 

Developed concept paper 

and draft programme for 

reporting conference 

 

Gender-based violence 

conference; conference 

proceedings report 

available 

 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

16 Days of Activism 

campaign 

 

Application of protocols at 

selected courts and police 

stations; data capturing 

and analysis of gender-

based violence statistics 

Provincial reports available 

 

 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

SADC Protocol 

 

Assessment of draft 

protocol  

Recommendations 

developed 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

Capacity of vulnerable 

groups to assert their 

rights to equality 

Identifying discriminatory 

practices and customs 

during widowhood 

Sampling and fieldwork; 

data capturing and 

analysis; reporting 

Research reports available; 

information disseminated 

February 

2008 

Achieved 

 

2.6.9 Programme: Chief Operations Office (COO) 

 

Purpose 

 

The strategic management function of the COO is to oversee the provinces, ensuring adherence to the CGE 

strategic framework. The main focus includes overseeing the implementation of the CGE’s programme of 

action and ensuring national and provincial coordination and integration. The COO is also tasked with ensuring 
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and maintaining good governance and compliance, adhering to the provisions of the Public Finance 

Management Act, Treasury regulations and internal procedures, policies, rules and regulations.  

 

Service delivery achievements 

 

Strategic objectives Measurement Outputs/performance 

measure/service delivery indicators 

Actual 

Coordinate the development of provincial 

programmes of action (POA) 

POAs developed and implemented Nine POAs and work plans for provinces in 

line with national strategic plan 

Achieved 

Coordinate and oversee the 

implementation of the three 

departmental programmes 

Departmental programmes implemented Reports on provincial implementation 

circulated to all Management Committee 

members 

Achieved 

Liaison for reporting from provinces to 

line departments 

Reports Quarterly reports submitted covering all 

departmental requirements 

Achieved 

Oversee the development of budgets and 

expenditure versus the allocation of 

provincial transfers 

Budgets compiled Ensure CGE financial systems in line with 

legislation 

Achieved 

Oversee the allocation and management 

of all provincial resources 

Audit of resources and requirements 

conducted in terms of safety and 

equipment 

Address and resolve provincial resources 

requirements 

Achieved 

Participate in Management Committee 

meetings and all thematic committee 

meetings 

Regular meeting with Provincial 

Coordinators to ensure sharing of 

information 

Ensure the flow of information from 

Management Committee and committees 

to provinces 

Achieved 

 

Reports from the following provinces are also covered in this report: Mpumalanga, KwaZulu-Natal, Gauteng, 

Free State, Northern Cape, Eastern Cape, Western Cape and North-West. 
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PART 3 HUMAN RESOURCES  

 

3.1 EMPLOYMENT VACANCIES 
 

Table 3.1  Employment and vacancies by programme, March 2008 

 

Programme Number of 

vacant posts 

Number of  

posts 

Number of 

filled posts 

Vacancy rate 

Commissioners 0 12 12 0 

Legal Services 1 9 8 4.17% 

Research 1 9 8 4.17% 

PEI 1 9 8 4.17% 

Finance and 

Management 

1 25 24 4.17% 

Administration 

and Support 

8 36 28 18.48% 

Total 

 

12 100 88 12% 

 

3.2 EMPLOYMENT CHANGES 
 

Table 3.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation, 1 April 2007 – 31 March 2008 

 
 

 There was no job evaluation conducted during the year. 

 
Table 3.3 Reasons why staff are leaving the Commission 

 

Termination Type Number 

Death 1 

Resignation 10 

Dismissal – operational changes 0 

Dismissal – misconduct 2 

Dismissal – inefficiency 0 

Ill-health 0 

Retirement 0 

Total 

 

13 

 
 

Critical 

occupation 

Number of 

vacant posts 

Number of  

posts 

Number of 

filled posts 

Vacancy rate 

Legal 1 9 8 4.17% 

Research 1 9 8 4.17% 

Education and 

Training 

1 9 8 4.17% 

Total 3 27 24 11.11% 

 



 

 47 

 Commission for Gender Equality Annual Report 2007/2008 

Table 3.4 Promotions by salary band 

 

Programme Employees at April 

2007 

Promotion to 

another salary level 

Salary band promo-

tion as a % of 

employees by salary 

Progression to 

another notch 

within a salary level 

Notch progression 

as a % of employees 

by programme 

Commissioners 12 0 0 0 0 

Top management 12 0 0 0 0 

Middle 

management 

19 0 0 12 63.16% 

Professionally 

qualified 

27 0 0 22 81.48% 

Skilled 17 0 0 14 82.35% 

Semi-skilled 13 0 0 11 84.62% 

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees with 

disabilities 

0 0 0 0 0 

Total 

 

76 0 0 59 77.63% 

 

3.3 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 
 

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998. 

 

Table 3.5 Total number of employees, including employees with disabilities, as on 31 March 2008 

 

Occupational category Male 

 

Female 

 African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Top management 2 0 0 0 3 0 0 1 

Middle management 6 0 1 0 9 3 0 0 

Professionals 9 1 0 0 14 3 0 0 

Skilled 3 0 0 0 12 2 0 0 

Semi-skilled 3 0 0 0 8 2 0 0 

Unskilled employees with 

disabilities 

0 

 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 

 

18 1 1 0 37 10 0 1 

 

 There were one female and one male foreign African employed during the year. 
 

Table 3.6 Terminations by salary category, 2007/2008 

 

Occupational category Male 

 

Female 

 African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Commissioners  0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Senior management 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 

Middle management 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 

Professionally qualified 4 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 
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Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 1 

 

0 0 1 8 2 0 0 

 

3.4 PERFORMANCE REWARDS 

 

Table 3.7 Performance reward by salary band/category, 2007/2008 

 

Programme Number of 

beneficiaries 

Beneficiaries profiles % of total within group 

Top management 3 6 50% 

Middle management 12 19 63.13% 

Professionally qualified 22 27 81.48% 

Skilled 14 17 82.35% 

Semi-skilled 11 13 84.62% 

Unskilled 0 0 0 

Employees with 

disabilities 

0 0 0 

Total 62 

 

82  

 

3.5 LEAVE UTILISATION 

 
Table 3.8 Annual leave, 1 January 2007 – 31 December 2007 

 

Salary band Total number of days taken  Number of employees  

Top management 72 6 

Middle management 228 19 

Professionally qualified 174 27 

Skilled 154 17 

Semi-skilled 146 13 

Unskilled 0 0 

 
Table 3.9 Sick leave utilisation, 1 January 2007 – 31 December 2007 

 

Salary band Total number of days % days with medical 

certification 

Number of employees 

using sick leave 

Top management 46 1 2 

Middle management 96 6 11 

Professionally qualified 66 10 15 

Skilled 121 15 23 

Semi-skilled 38 5 7 

Unskilled 0 0 0 

 

 There were six leave payouts on termination in January 2007 to December 2007.  

 Only one disability leave was granted in the top management category. 
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3.6 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 

 
Table 3.10 Skills development, 2007/2008 

 

Occupational category Male 

 

Female 

 African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Commissioners and senior 

management 

2 0 0 0 6 2 0 0 

Middle management 6 1 0 0 8 2 1 0 

Administrators and assistance 

officers 

2 0 0 0 13 1 0 0 

Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 

Total 

 

10 1 0 0 27 5 1 0 
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PART 4  FINANCES 

 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION OF THE COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY FOR 

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008 

 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Introduction 
 

1. I was engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of the Commission for Gender Equality 

(the Commission), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2008, statement of 

financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then 

ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 

66 to 86. 

 

Responsibility of the Accounting Officer for the Financial Statements 
 

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with the basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in 

accounting policy note 1.1 to the financial statements, and in the manner required by the Public Finance 

Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). This responsibility includes:  

 Designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error; 

 Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 

 Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

 

Responsibility of the Auditor-General 
 

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, read with section 4 

of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these financial statements based on conducting the audit in accordance with the International Standards 

on Auditing (ISA) and General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 

2008. Because of the matters discussed in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, however, I was 

not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. 

 

Basis of Accounting  
 

4. The Commission’s policy is to prepare financial statements on the basis of accounting determined by the 

National Treasury as set out in accounting policy note 1.1 to the financial statements. 
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

 

Donor Funding 

 

5. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the donor funding amounting to R522 058, disclosed in the 

statement of financial performance, is fairly presented.  

6. There was also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that donor funding is properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the client and its 

records not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

7. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the occurrence, completeness, accuracy, cut off and 

classification of the donor funding.  

 

Operating Expenditure and Finance Cost 

 

8. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that certain operating expenditure and finance costs amounting to 

R45 133 141 and R333 632 respectively, disclosed in the statement of financial performance, are fairly 

presented.  

9. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the operating expenditure and finance costs are properly recorded due to restrictions 

imposed by the client and its records not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

10. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the occurrence, completeness, accuracy, cut off and 

classification of certain operating expenditure and finance cost.  

 

Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets 

 

11. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that property, plant, equipment and intangible assets amounting to 

R8 325 866 and R787 783 respectively, disclosed in notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements, are fairly 

presented.  

12. In terms of the South African Statement of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP), IAS 16 (AC 

123), the residual value and the useful life of an asset shall be reviewed at each financial year end. The 

Commission did not review the residual value of assets and the useful life during the current or previous 

financial periods. We were not able to perform alternative audit procedures to give us assurance as to 

the extent of the error, due to restrictions imposed by the client.  

13. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the property, plant, equipment and intangible assets are properly recorded due to 

restrictions imposed by the client and its records not permitting the application of alternative 

procedures. 

14. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, rights, valuation and 

allocation of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets. 
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Trade and Other Receivables 

 

15. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that trade and other receivables amounting to R580 706, disclosed in 

note 4 to the financial statements, are fairly presented.  

16. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the trade and other receivables are properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the 

client and its records not permitting the application of alternative procedures.  

17. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, rights, valuation and 

allocation of trade and other receivables. 

 

Reserve and Change in Accounting Policy Note 20 

 

18. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the reserve amounting to R4 049 454, as disclosed in note 6 to the 

financial statements, is fairly presented. The change in accounting policy note 20 indicates that the 

reserve amounting to R4 049 454 originating from the prior year was released during the current year, 

which contradicts note 6.  

19. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the reserve is properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the client and its records 

not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

20. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, rights, valuation and 

allocation of the reserve, nor the occurrence, completeness, classification, accuracy and valuation of note 

20. 

 

Finance Lease Obligation, Deferred Lease Obligation and Operating Lease Commitment 

 

21. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the finance lease obligation, deferred lease obligation and operating 

lease commitment amounting to R481 678, R79 639 and R140 691 respectively, disclosed in note 7 and 

16 to the financial statements, are fairly presented.  

22. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the finance lease obligation, deferred lease obligation and operating lease commitment 

are properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the client and its records not permitting the 

application of alternative procedures. 

23. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, rights, valuation and 

allocation of the finance lease obligation, deferred lease obligation and operating lease commitment. 

 

Trade Payables  

 

24. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the certain trade payables amounting to R4 355 452, disclosed in 

note 8 to the financial statements, are fairly presented.  

25. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that certain trade payables are properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the client and 

its records not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

26. The Commission did not account for the time value of money on trade payables as required by South 

African Statement of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice circular 9 of 2006. We were unable to 
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determine the effect of time value of money as the information supporting the majority of trade 

creditors was not provided. 

27. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, rights, valuation and 

allocation of certain trade payables. 

 

Provisions 

 

28. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that provisions amounting to R1 190 667, disclosed in note 9 to the 

financial statements, are fairly presented.  

29. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that provisions are properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the client and its records 

not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

30. Furthermore, the South African Statement of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, IAS 19 (AC 116), 

requires that short-term employment benefits be classified as accruals and not provisions, the result is 

that provisions are overstated and accruals understated by R1 190 667.  

 

Commitments 

 

31. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the commitments amounting to R36 578, disclosed in note 21 to the 

financial statements, are fairly presented.  

32. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the commitments are properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the client and its 

records not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

33. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, rights, classification, 

accuracy and valuation of commitments. 

 

Reclassification of Comparative Figures Note 15 

 

34. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the reclassified comparative amounts relating to finance charges and 

investment income amounting to R304 520, disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, are fairly 

presented.  

35. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the reclassification is properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the client and its 

records not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

36. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the occurrence, completeness, classification, accuracy 

and valuation and compliance to IAS of the reclassified amounts. 

 

Revision of the Previously Issued Financial Statements  

 

37. The corresponding figures for donor funding and trade and other receivables have been restated as result 

of an error discovered during 2007/2008. No disclosure was made in terms of South African Statement of 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, IAS 8 (AC 103).  

38. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the adjustments relating to the prior year relating to donor funding 

and trade and other receivables amounting to R43 317 and R41 894 respectively are fairly presented  
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39. There were also no alternative satisfactory audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the correction of the prior period errors is properly recorded due to restrictions imposed 

by the client and its records not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

40. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself of the occurrence, completeness, classification, accuracy and 

valuation of the adjustments. 

 

Annexure A: Disclosure of Remuneration 

 

41. I was not provided with sufficient audit evidence to satisfactorily perform the necessary audit procedures 

to obtain reasonable assurance that the Provisions amounting to R7 604 2011, disclosed in Annexure A to 

the financial statements, are fairly presented.  

42. There was also no alternative satisfactory audit procedure that I could perform to obtain reasonable 

assurance that Annexure A is properly recorded due to restrictions imposed by the client and its records 

not permitting the application of alternative procedures. 

43. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, rights, classification, 

accuracy and valuation of Annexure A. 

 

Opinion  

 
Disclaimer of Opinion  

 

44. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, I 

have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion 

on the financial statements of the Commission. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the financial 

statements. 

 

OTHER MATTERS 
 

I draw attention to the following matters that relate to my responsibilities in the audit of the financial 

statements: 

 

Internal Controls 

 

45.  Section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA states that the accounting officer must ensure that the Commission has 

and maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal 

control. The table below depicts the root causes that gave rise to the inefficiencies in the system of 

internal control, which led to the disclaimer of opinion. The root causes are categorised according to the 

five components of an effective system of internal control. In some instances deficiencies exist in more 

than one internal control component. 

 

 

Reporting item Control 

environment 

Risk assess-

ment 

Control 

activities 

Information 

and communi-

cation 

Monitoring 

Donor funding      

Operating 

expenditure and 

finance cost 

     

Property, plant,      



 

 55 

 Commission for Gender Equality Annual Report 2007/2008 

Reporting item Control 

environment 

Risk assess-

ment 

Control 

activities 

Information 

and communi-

cation 

Monitoring 

equipment and 

intangible assets 

Trade and other 

receivables 

     

Reserve and 

change in 

accounting 

policy note 20 

     

Finance lease 

obligation, 

deferred lease 

obligation and 

operating lease 

commitment 

     

Trade payables      

Provisions      

Commitments      

Reclassification 

of comparative 

figures note 15 

     

Revision of the 

previously issued 

financial 

statements  

     

Annexure A: 

Disclosure of 

remuneration 

     

Control environment establishes the foundation for the internal control system by providing 

fundamental discipline and structure for financial reporting. 

Risk assessment involves the identification and analysis by management of relevant financial reporting 

risks to achieve predetermined financial reporting objectives. 

Control activities policies, procedures and practices that ensure that management’s financial reporting 

objectives are achieved and financial reporting risk mitigation strategies are carried out. 

Information and communication supports all other control components by communicating control 

responsibilities for financial reporting to employees and by providing financial reporting information in a 

form and time-frame that allows people to carry out their financial reporting duties. 

Monitoring covers external oversight of internal controls over financial reporting by management or 

other parties outside the process; or the application of independent methodologies, like customised 

procedures or standard checklists, by employees within a process. 

 

Matters of Governance 

 

46. The PFMA tasks the accounting officer with a number of responsibilities concerning financial and risk 

management and internal control. Fundamental to achieving this is the implementation of certain key 

governance responsibilities, which I have assessed as follows: 

 



 

 56 

 Commission for Gender Equality Annual Report 2007/2008 

Matter of Governance Yes No 

Audit Committee   

 The Commission had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial 

year. 

  

 The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of 

reference. 

  

 The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as 

set out in section 77 of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10/27.1.8. 

  

Internal Audit   

 The Commission had an internal audit function in operation throughout the 

financial year. 

  

 The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit 

plan. 

  

 The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the 

year, as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2/27.2. 

  

Other Matters of Governance   

The annual financial statements were submitted for audit as per the legislated 

deadlines section 40 of the PFMA. 

  

The financial statements submitted for audit were not subject to any material 

amendments resulting from the audit. 

  

No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or 

the unavailability of expected information and/or the unavailability of senior 

management. 

  

The prior year’s external audit recommendations have been substantially 

implemented. 

  

 

 

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
 

47. I have reviewed the performance information as set out on pages 9 to 45. 

 

Responsibility of the Accounting Officer for the Performance Information 

 

48. The accounting officer has additional responsibilities, as required by section 40(3)(a) of the PFMA, to 

ensure that the Annual Report and audited financial statements fairly present the performance against 

predetermined objectives of the Commission. 

 

Responsibility of the Auditor-General 

 

49. I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the PAA read with General Notice 616 of 

2008, issued in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008.  

50. In terms of the foregoing, my engagement included performing procedures of an audit nature to obtain 

sufficient appropriate evidence about the performance information and related systems, processes and 

procedures. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. 

51. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the audit 

findings reported below.  
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Audit Findings (Performance Information) 

 

Non-compliance with Regulatory Requirements 

 

No Strategic Plan 

 

52. The accounting officer of the Commission did not prepare a strategic plan that is consistent with the 

period covered by the medium-term expenditure framework for approval by the relevant executive 

authority, as required by Treasury Regulation 5.1.1. 

 

No Quarterly Reporting on Performance Information 

 

53. No quarterly reports on the progress in achieving measurable objectives and targets were prepared by 

the different programme managers and as a whole for the Commission to facilitate effective performance 

monitoring, evaluation and corrective action, as required by Treasury Regulation 5.3.1.  

 

Performance Information not Received in Time 
 

54. I was not able to complete an evaluation of the quality of the reported performance information as set 

out on pages 9 to 45 of the Annual Report, since the information was not received in time.  

 

APPRECIATION 
 

55. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Commission during the audit is sincerely appreciated. 

 

 

 
 

Pretoria 
 
23 September 2009 
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Commission for Gender Equality  

Annual financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2008  
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Domicile South Africa 
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Commission for Gender Equality 

Annual financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2008 

 

Commission’s Responsibilities and Approval  
 

The Accounting Authority is required by the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 to maintain adequate 

accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and 

related financial information included in this report. It is the Authority’s responsibility to ensure that the 

annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Commission as at the reporting date and 

the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with South African 

Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and the prescribed Standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP). The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 

opinion on the annual financial statements. 

 

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice including any interpretations of such Statements issued by the Accounting 

Practices Board, with the prescribed GRAP issued by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent 

SA GAAP Statement as follows: 

 

Standard of GRAP Replaced Statement of SA GAAP 

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements AC 101: Presentation of financial statements 

GRAP 2: Cash flow statements AC 118: Cash flow statements 

GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accounting 

estimates and errors 

AC 103: Accounting policies, changes in estimates and 

errors 

 

The financial statements are based upon appropriate policies consistently applied and supported by 

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

 

The managers acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control 

established by the Commission and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control 

environment. To enable the managers to meet these responsibilities, the Commissioners sets standards for 

internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the 

proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and 

adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout 

the Commission and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the 

Commission’s activities are conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.  

 

The focus of risk management in the Commission is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 

known forms of risk across the Commission. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Commission 

endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour 

are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

 

The Commission is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the 

system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the 

preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide 

only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. 
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The Commissioners have reviewed the cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2008 and, in the light of this 

review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Commission has or has access to adequate 

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

 

Although the Commissioners are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the Commission, they are 

supported by the Commission’s external auditor. 

 

The external auditor is responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the Commission’s annual 

financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the Commission’s external 

auditors. 

 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 59 to 64, which have been prepared on the going concern 

basis, were approved by the Commissioners on DD MM 2008 and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

_________________________       _________________________ 

 

Chief Executive Officer       Chairperson 
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Commission for Gender Equality 

Annual financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2008 

 
Statement of Financial Position  
      

 Note(s)   2008  2007 

   R  R 

      

Assets       

Non-current assets    9,113,649  10,070,050 

Property, plant and equipment  2  8,325,866  8,997,738 

Intangible assets 3  787,783   1,072,312  

      

Current assets    7,236,748  14,860,141 

Trade and other receivables  4  580,706  156,470 

Cash and cash equivalents  5  6,656,042  14,703,671 

      

      

Total assets    16,350,397  24,930,191 

      

Net assets and liabilities       

Net assets     (6,666,454)   (15,340,901) 

Accumulated surplus     (2,617,000)   (11,291,447) 

Reserves 6   (4,049,454)   (4,049,454) 

      

Liabilities       

Non-current liabilities       

Finance lease obligation  7   (189,868)   (481,679) 

      

Current liabilities     (9,494,075)   (9,107,611) 

Finance lease obligation  7   (291,811)   (223,804) 

Overdrawn bank accounts    (2,324,302)   -  

Deferred lease payments    (79,639)   (147,646) 

Trade and other payables  8   (5,607,655)   (7,927,472) 

Provisions  9   (1,190,668)   (808,689) 

      

      

Total liabilities     (9,683,943)   (9,589,290) 

      

Total net assets and liabilities     (16,350,397)   (24,930,191) 

 

Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A5
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A25
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A45
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A57
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A57
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A85
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A108
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Annual financial statements 

for the period ended 31 March 2008 

 
Statement of Financial Performance  

      

 Note(s)   2008  2007 

   R  R 

      

Government grants    39,745,000    37,757,000  

Donor funding    522,058    376,932  

      

Total revenue 10   40,267,058    38,133,932  

Other income  11   814,212    326,773  

Operating expenses     (47,761,329)   (32,945,661) 

      

Operating surplus/(deficit)  12   (6,680,059)   5,515,044  

Finance costs  13   (333,632)   (267,011) 

      

Net surplus/(deficit) for the period     (7,013,691)   5,248,143  

 

Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A134
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A141
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A148
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A173


 

 63 

 Commission for Gender Equality Annual Report 2007/2008 

 

Commission for Gender Equality 

Annual financial statements for the period 31 March 2008 

 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets  

        

 

Note(s) 

 
Revaluation 

reserve  

Accumulated 
surplus 

 Net assets 

   R  R  R 

           

Balance at 1 April 2006     -    8,374,641    8,374,641  

Changes         

Surplus funds to be surrendered    -    (2,332,648)   (2,332,648) 

Revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 

   4,049,454    -    4,049,454  

        

Surplus/(deficit) for the year     -    5,248,143    5,248,143  

           

        

Balance at 31 March 2007     4,049,454    11,290,136    15,339,590  

        

Surplus funds surrendered      (1,659,445)   (1,659,445) 

(Surplus)/deficit for the year       (7,013,691)   (7,013,691) 

        

Balance at 31 March 2008    4,049,454    2,617,000    6,666,454  

        
Notes   6     

 

Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A45
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Commission for Gender Equality 
 
Annual financial statements for the period 31 March 2008 
 
Cash Flow Statement 
      

      

 Note(s)   2008  2007 

   R  R 

      

Cash flows from operating activities 

      

Cash receipts from customers     41,081,269    38,187,874  

Cash paid to suppliers and 
employees  

   (43,409,904)   (27,541,114) 

        

Cash generated from operations  14   (9,558,017)   10,646,760  

Finance costs     (333,632)   (161,977) 

Interest received    814,212    326,595  

        

Net cash from operating 
activities   

  (9,077,437)   10,811,378  

      

Cash flows from investing 
activities 

     

      

Purchase of property, plant and 
equipment  

2   (1,691,252)   (5,174,770) 

Purchase of intangible assets 3   (84,886)   (1,102,950) 

      

Cash flows from financing 
activities 

     

      

Finance lease obligation 7   481,678    (275,524) 

        

Total cash movement for the 
period  

   (10,371,896)   4,258,134  

Cash at the beginning of the 
period  

   14,703,671    10,445,536  

      

Total cash at end of the period  5   4,331,775    14,703,670  

 

Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A255
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#'PPE note'!A1
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#'PPE note'!A59
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A57
Shirley/CGE/Copy%20of%20Amended%20Final%20AFS%20-%20submitted%208%20August%202008.xls#notes!A25
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Commission for Gender Equality 
 
 
Annual financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2008 
 
 
1. Accounting policies 
 

1.1 Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African statements of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) including any interpretations of such statements issued by the 
Accounting Practices Board, with the prescribed standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices 
(GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent GAAP statement as follows: 
 

Standard of GRAP: Replacement Statement of GAAP: 

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements; AC 101: Presentation of financial statements;  

GRAP 2: Cash flow statement; AC 118: Cash flow statements;  

GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accounting 
estimates and errors. 

AC 103: Accounting policies, changes in accounting 
estimates and errors. 

 
The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported 
by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement of 
certain financial instruments at fair value and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. 
 
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous year. 
 

1.2 Significant judgements 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 
the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ 
from these estimates which may be material to the financial statements. Significant judgements include:  
 
Allowance for doubtful debts 
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that it is 
impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the debtor’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. 
Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in Note 7 – Provisions. 
 
Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at 
the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. 
 
A provision is recognised when: 
 

(a) The company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; 
(b) It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation; and 
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(c) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 

1.3 Currency 
 
These financial statements are presented in South African rands as this is the currency in which the entity’s 
transactions are denominated. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rand.  
 

1.4 Property, plant and equipment 
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
 

 It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; 
and 

 The cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
 
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and 
costs incurred subsequently to add to or replace part of it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying 
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. 
 
The initial estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is 
located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Assets held under finance leases are accounted for under the cost model and are depreciated over their 
expected useful lives or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease. The average depreciation rate 
used for assets held under finance leases is 20%. 
 
Revaluation model 
Property, plant and equipment (excluding assets held under finance leases) are carried at revalued amounts, 
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying 
amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the reporting date. 
 
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to net assets in the 
revaluation reserve. The increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the 
current period. The decrease is debited directly to net assets in the revaluation reserve to the extent of any 
credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. 
 
Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, to write down the cost/fair value, less residual 
value, on a straight- line basis over their useful lives as follows: 
 

Item 
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 
Motor vehicles  4 years 
Office equipment  5 years 
Computer equipment 3 years 

 
The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that an entity would currently obtain from disposal of 
the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the 
condition expected at the end of its useful life. 
 
The residual value and the useful life of each asset are reviewed at each reporting date. 
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Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost 
of the item shall be depreciated separately. 
 
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying 
amount of another asset. 
 
The surplus or deficit arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in 
surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The surplus or deficit arising from the derecognition of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if 
any, and the carrying amount of the item. 
 

1.5 Intangible assets 
 
An intangible asset is recognised when: 
 

 It is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the entity; and 

 The cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
 
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 
 
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it 
is incurred. 
 
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 
recognised when: 
 

 It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale; 

 There is an intention to complete and use or sell it; 

 There is an ability to use or sell it; 

 It will generate probable future economic benefits; 

 There are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to 
use or sell the asset; and 

 The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 
 
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 
 
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is 
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation 
is not provided for these intangible assets. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight 
line basis over their useful life. 
 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every reporting date. 
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is 
an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining 
carrying amount is amortised over its useful life. 
 
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not 
recognised as intangible assets. 
 
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as 
follows: 
 

Item    Useful life 
Computer software  3 years 

 



 

 68 

 Commission for Gender Equality Annual Report 2007/2008 

 

1.6 Financial instruments 
 
Initial recognition 
The Commission classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial 
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Commission’s statement of financial position 
when the Commission becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Trade and other receivables 
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable 
amounts are recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The 
allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. 
 
Trade and other payables 
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. 
 

1.7 Leases 
 
1.7.1 Operating leases as the lessee 
Leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial 
performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
 
1.7.2 Finance leases as the lessee 
Leases of assets are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.  
 
Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if 
lower at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included 
in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between 
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to surplus or deficit. 
 
Leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial 
performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

 
1.8  Impairment of assets 
 
The Commission assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Commission estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 
 



 

 69 

 Commission for Gender Equality Annual Report 2007/2008 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual 
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined. 
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use. 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. 
 
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in surplus or deficit. 
 
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other 
than goodwill is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued 
asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 
 

1.9 Employee benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefits 
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such 
as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care) are 
recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted. The expected cost of 
compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 
 
Defined contribution plans 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 
 
Payments made to industry-managed (or state plan) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined 
contribution plans where the Commission’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a 
defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 
 

1.10 Provisions and contingencies 
 
Provisions are recognised when: 
 

 The company has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

 It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation; and 

 A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 
 
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
obligation. 
 
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another 
party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The 
amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. 
 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
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If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and 
measured as a provision. 
 
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 
 

 Has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 
o The business or part of a business concerned; 
o The principal locations affected; 
o The location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for 

terminating their services;  
o The expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
o When the plan will be implemented; and 

 Has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting 
to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

 
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 20. 
 

1.11 Government grants 
 
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that: 
 

 The Commission will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and 

 The grants will be received. 
 
Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs 
that they are intended to compensate. 
 
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised as 
income of the period in which it becomes receivable. 
 
Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the 
statement of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving 
at the carrying amount of the asset. 
 
Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the statement of financial performance or deducted from 
the related expense. 
 
Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against any un-amortised deferred credit set up in 
respect of the grant. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where no deferred 
credit exists, the repayment is recognised immediately as an expense. 
 
Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the asset or 
reducing the deferred income balance by the amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that 
would have been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the grant is recognised immediately as an 
expense. 

 
1.12 Revenue 
 
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue 
associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the 
reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are 
satisfied: 
 

 The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
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 It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
company; 

 The stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 

 The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured 
reliably. 

 
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, 
revenue shall be recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and 
volume rebates. 
 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. 
 

1. 13 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
 
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a 
requirement of any applicable legislation.  
 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided 
had reasonable care been exercised. 
 
All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against income in the period in which they are 
incurred. 
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Commission for Gender Equality 

Notes to the annual financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2008 

 

2. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

R  R  R  R  R  R 

Motor  Furniture  Office  Computer  Leased  Total 

vehicles    fittings  equipment  assets   

Year ended 31 March 2007  4,122    524,520    114,829    444,360    727,736    1,815,567  

Additions  1,414,888    488,010    -    3,271,872    -    5,174,770  

Revaluation increase  111,152    1,375,762    638,271    1,924,270    -    4,049,454  

Depreciation  (54,731)   (151,402)   (99,154)   (1,530,781)   (205,987)   (2,042,054) 

Closing net carrying amount  1,475,431    2,236,890    653,947    4,109,721    521,749    8,997,738  

Cost  1,765,080    2,944,811    1,134,039    7,409,513    1,029,934    14,283,376  

Accumulated depreciation  (289,649)   (707,921)   (480,092)   (3,299,792)   (508,185)   (5,285,638) 

 

Year ended 31 March 2008            

Opening net carrying amount  1,475,431    2,236,890   -   653,947   -   4,109,721   -   521,749    8,997,738  

Additions  -    421,570    459,008    810,674    -    1,691,252  

Revaluation increase  -    -    -    -    -    -  

Depreciation  (368,858)   (493,015)   (167,343)   (1,229,558)   (104,350)   (2,363,123) 

Closing net carrying amount  1,106,572    2,165,446    945,613    3,690,836    417,400    8,325,866  

Cost  1,765,080    3,366,381    1,593,048    8,220,186    1,029,934    15,974,628  

Accumulated depreciation  (658,507)   (1,200,935)   (647,435)   (4,529,350)   (612,534)   (7,648,762) 

 

 
Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)          

 
2008  2007 

R  R 
Leasehold assets           417,400    521,749  
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3. Intangible assets 

 

 

2008  2007 
Cost  Accumulated  Carrying  Cost  Accumulated  Carrying 

  Amortisation  Value    Amortisation  Value 
R  R  R  R  R  R 

           

Computer software   1,187,836     (400,052)    787,783    1,102,950     (30,637)    1,072,312  

 
 
Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2008           
              
   Opening  Additions  Amortisation  Closing     
   Balance      Balance     
   R  R  R  R     
              

Computer software   1,072,312     84,886     (369,415)    787,782      

 
Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2007           
 
   Opening  Additions  Amortisation  Closing     
   Balance      Balance     
   R  R  R  R     
 

Computer software   1,102,950     -     (30,637)    1,072,313      
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4. Trade Receivables 

 

2007  Unwinding    

  time value    

 Opening of money Amounts Receivables Closing 

 balance effect received raised balance 

 R R R R R 

Prepaid rentals  -   -   -   -   -  

Accounts receivable  25,277   178   (25,277)  156,470   156,470  

  25,277   178   (25,277)  156,470   156,470  

      

2008  Unwinding    

  time value    

 Opening of money Amounts Receivables Closing 

 balance effect received raised balance 

 R R R R R 

Prepaid rentals  -   -   -   -   -  

Accounts receivable  156,470   -   (156,470)  580,706   580,706  

  156,470   -   (156,470)  580,706   580,706  

 

5. Cash and equivalents 
 2008 2007 

 R R 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:   

Cash on hand   15,109   6,500  

Bank balances   6,640,933   14,697,171  

  6,656,042   14,703,671  

   
 

Account number Bank Account description Account balance 

62150567017 First National Bank Mpumalanga  61,247  

62046140638 First National Bank Cape Town regional office  74,990  

62016733067 First National Bank Durban regional office  41,165  

62077016155 First National Bank Mafikeng regional office  62,249  

62036339960 First National Bank East London regional office  72,270  

61066686581 First National Bank Call account  6,228,196  

620457230 First National Bank Limpopo province  97,008  

62150566738 First National Bank Gauteng provincial office  3,810  

Total  6,640,933 

 

Overdrawn accounts 

Account number Bank Account description Account balance 

62017507883 First National Bank Bloemfontein regional office  (17,606) 

50661206951 First National Bank Head office  (2,298,470) 

62106569447 First National Bank Kimberly regional office  (8,226) 

Total  (2,324,302) 
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6. Reserves 

 
Reserves consist of the revaluation reserve, created with the current year revaluation of property, plant and equipment.  

 
 2008 2007  
 R R  
Opening balance  -   -   
 Revaluation reserve 4,049,454   4,049,454   
Less: Amounts realised through depreciation -   -   

Closing balance      4,049,454   4,049,454   

 

7. Obligations under finance leases:  
 

2007 

 

 Minimum 
lease payment 

Future finance 
charges 

Present value 
of minimum 

lease 
payments  

Amounts payable under finance leases  R   R  R  

     

Within one year 291,774 67,969 223,804  

In the second to fifth year inclusive 527,856 46,178 481,679  

After five years  -   -   -   

  819,630   114,147   705,483   

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months    (223,804)  

    481,679   

Obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased asset. 

 

2008     

 

Minimum 
lease payment 

Future finance 
charges 

Present value 
of minimum 

lease 
payments  

     

Amounts payable under finance leases  R   R  R  

     

Within one year  248,039   43,772   291,811   

In the second to fifth year inclusive  189,868   -   189,868   

After five years  -   -   -   

      481,679   

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months    (291,811)  

    189,868   

Obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased asset.   
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8. Trade payables 
 

2007 Opening 
balance 

Unwinding 
time value of 
money effect 

Amounts paid Payables 
raised 

Closing 
balance 

      

 R R R R R 

      

Department of Public Works 1,109,664   11,499   (1,121,163)  1,485,103   1,485,103  

Accruals  469,108   738   (469,846)  4,093,294   4,093,294  

Trade creditors  830,244   8,603   (838,847)  16,426   16,426  

Department of Justice  -   -   -   2,332,648   2,332,648  

  2,409,015   20,840   (2,429,856)  7,927,472   7,927,472  

 

 
2008 

 

Unwinding 
time value of 

money 

Amounts 
paid 

Payables 
raised 

Closing 
balance 

 

 

      

R R R R R  

Department of Public Works 1,485,103 - (1,485,103) 1,058,138 1,058,138 4,355,452 

Accruals 4,093,294  (4,093,294) 2,558,546 2,558,546  

Employee Claims - - - 10,131 10,131  

Trade creditors 16,426  (16,426) 1,252,203 1,252,203  

Department of Justice 2,332,648  (2,332,648) - -  

SARS - - - 728,637 728,637  

 7,927,472 - (7,927,472) 5,607,655 5,607,655  

 

9. Provisions – In Accordance with IAS 37 
 2008 2007   

     

 R R   

Provision for leave pay     

Opening balance  599,485   313,457    

Amounts utilised  (599,485)  (313,457)   

Additional amounts provided  881,837   599,485    

Closing balance  881,837   599,485    

 

Provision for bonuses     

Opening balance  209,204   225,150    

Unwinding the time value of money effect  (4,542)  22,193    

Amounts utilised  (204,662)  (247,343)   

Additional amounts provided  308,832   209,204    

Closing balance  308,832   209,204    

Total  1,190,668   808,689    

 
The provision for leave pay is expected to realise during the 2007 financial year. The provision for leave pay was not discounted 
as it is already reflected at its present value on the reporting date. When the provision for leave pay is calculated it is based on 
the employees’ salary scales as at the reporting date, but when the provision realises, during the 2007 financial year, it will 
realise at the employees’ new salary scales – i.e. after their annual salary increase.  
 
The provision for service bonuses is expected to realise during October 2007, as the annual service bonuses are paid to 
employees during October. 
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10. Revenue 

 2008 2007 
 R R 
   
Government grants   39,745,000   37,757,000  

Donor funding   522,058   376,932  

  40,267,058   38,133,932  

 

11. Other income 

 2008 2007 
 R R 
   
Interest received on bank balances  814,212   326,595  

Interest as a result of carrying receivables at amortised cost  -   178  

  814,212   326,773  

 

12. Operating surplus/(deficit) 

 2008 2007 
 R R 
   
Operating lease charges   816,464   1,405,329  

Premises      

 Contractual amounts  816,464  220,086 

Motor vehicles      

 Contractual amounts  -   2,000  

Equipment      

 Contractual amounts  -   1,183,243  

 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment   2,628,188   2,042,054  

Amortisation of intangible assets  102,838   30,637  

Employee costs   25,264,773   16,144,086  

Auditor’s remuneration – Fees for audit services only  803,935   564,165  

External audit – for audit services rendered  408,753   364,609  

Internal audit – for audit services rendered  395,181   199,556  

 

Programme expenditure  18,145,131   7,148,029  

Legal  49,984   618,251  

Research  752,398   1,606,669  

Public education and information  1,320,196   4,406,358  

Communication  2,209,202   260,467  

Consultancy  898,547   -  

Workshops  6,598,381   -  

Organisational diagnosis  985,510   -  

Other  5,330,913   256,284  

 

13. Finance costs 2008 2007 

 R R 

   

Finance leases  51,496   89,247  

Interest as a result of carrying payables at amortised cost  1,512   20,840  

Interest as a result of carrying purchases at fair value  280,624   70,741  

Interest as a result of carrying provisions at present value  -   22,193  

Other borrowings  -   63,994  

  333,632   267,014  
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14. Cash generated from (used in) operations 

 2008 2007 
 R R 
Deficit before taxation   (7,013,691)  5,291,348  

Adjustments for:    

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment   2,628,188   2,042,054  

Expenditure discounting adjustment   6,017  

Amortisation of intangible assets  102,838   30,637  

Finance costs   142,761   267,014  

Interest income  (811,212)  (326,595) 

Movements in operating lease payables and accruals   -   53,097  

Prior period error correction – leasehold property recognised    -  

Movements in provisions   381,979   270,467  

Accrual for Public Works raised    -  

Prior period error correction    -  

Surplus funds to be surrendered (please refer to note 8)  -   (2,332,648) 

Prior period error correction – additional bank account  (41,894)  (41,894) 

Changes in working capital:    

Trade and other receivables   (467,440)  (131,193) 

Trade and other payables   (2,319,816)  5,518,456  

Increase/(decrease) in donor funding   168,905   -  

  (7,229,382)  10,646,761  

 

15. Reclassification of comparative figures 

During the year the requirements of SAICA Circular 9/2006 – Transactions giving rise to adjustment to revenue/purchases, 
were applied to income and expenditure. The application of the circular entails the discounting of income and expenditure, 
using a market related interest rate, to account for deferred settlement terms. The income and expenditure, using a market 
related interest rate, to account for deferred settlement terms. 

   

 2008 2007 

Expenditure – portion reclassified to finance charges R R 

General expenditure   35,879  

Programme expenditure  304,520   41,828  

Finance cost  304,520   77,706  

   

Income – portion reclassified to investment income   

Other income   1,400  

Interest received  -   1,400  

 

16. Operating leases commitments 
 
At the reporting date the entity has outstanding commitments under operating leases which fall due as follows: 

 31 March 2008 31 March 2007  

Within one year (three months to June 2008)  140,691   1,374,705   

In the second to fifth year inclusive   2,009,971   

After five years  -   -   

Total  140,691   3,384,676   

 
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for its regional offices situated in Durban, Johannesburg, 
Bloemfontein, Polokwane, Mafikeng, Port Elizabeth, Kimberly, Cape Town and Nelspruit. 

 
Leases are negotiated for an average of three to five and rentals escalate by an average of 8% annually. 
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17. Risk management 
 

Liquidity risk 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying values as disclosed in the statement of financial position. 

Interest rate risk 

The company policy is to manage interest rate risk so that fluctuations in variable rates do not have a material impact on surplus/(deficit). At year 
end, financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk were as follows: 
 

Cash flow interest rate risk – 2008 

 

Financial instrument  Current interest 
rate 

Due in less than 
1 year  

R  

Due in 2 - 5 
years 

R 

Due in 5 to 10 
years 

     

Trade and other receivables – normal credit terms  8.50%  580,706   -   -  

Trade and other payables – normal credit terms  13.50%  (5,607,655)  -   -  

Finance lease liabilities 13.50%  291,811   189,868   -  

 

Cash flow interest rate risk – 2007 

 

Financial instrument  Current interest 
rate 

Due in less than 
1 year R 

Due in 2-5 years  
R 

Due in 5-10 
years 

Trade and other receivables – normal credit terms  8.50%  156,470   -   -  

Trade and other payables – normal credit terms  13.50%  2,332,648   -   -  

Finance lease liabilities   13.50%  291,774   527,856   -  

 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises on cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables. The risk on the cash and cash equivalents is managed through dealing with well 
established financial institutions and the Commission for Gender Equality. The risk arising on the trade receivables is managed through normal credit 
risk relating to the trade receivables is not concentrated due to a diversified customer base. Adequate provision is made for doubtful debts. 

 

18. Senior management remuneration  
 

Please refer to annexure A to the annual financial statements. 

 

19. Contingent Liability 
At the reporting date there was two cases reportable: 

a) The CEO of the Commission on Gender Equality was suspended on 21/04/2008. 
b) The internal audit services provider was stopped from performing the contract citing contractual flaws. 
 

20. Change in accounting policy 
 
During the period under review the Commission for Gender Equality opted to change the accounting policy applied to property, plant and equipment 
from the cost model that was used in prior periods to the revaluation model. The Commission was of the opinion that reporting under the 
revaluation model would result in a truer reflection of the economic value of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Retrospective application of the revaluation proved to be impracticable. The impact of the impracticability to apply the revaluation retrospectively 
cannot be quantified. 
 
The aggregate effect of the changes in accounting policy on the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 is as follows: 
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 2008 2007 

Statement of financial position   

 

Property, plant and equipment      

Previously stated  -   4,955,778  

Revaluation increase   4,049,454  

Revalued net book value  -   9,005,232  

 
Revaluation reserve 

Gross revaluation reserve resulting from the revaluation  -   4,049,454  

Cumulative revaluation reserve realised to date  4,049,454   -  

      4,049,454   4,049,454  

       

Accumulated surplus 

Increase for the period due to realisation of the revaluation reserve through the use of 
the plant and machinery 

 -   -  

  

      -   -  

 
Statement of financial performance 

 
Depreciation on plant and machinery 

Previously stated  -   1,220,145  

Decrease due to revaluation  -   821,910  

  -   2,042,054  

 

21. Commitments 
 
The Commission for Gender Equality entered into cellphone contracts for certain of its executives for use in the normal course 
of the business/activities of the Commission. The resultant commitments, based on the minimum monthly premiums, are as 
follows at the reporting date: 

   

 2008 2007 

   

Within one year  36,578   10,590  

In the second to fifth year inclusive  -   7,788  

  36,578   18,379  

 

Analysis of the movement of the commitments 

 

Opening balance   18,379  

Additional amounts committed to   10,590  

Unwinding time value of money   3,621  

Amounts paid  (36,578)  (22,000) 

Closing balance at the reporting date  (36,578)  10,590  
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Commission for Gender Equality 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the period 31 March 2008 

 

ANNEXURE A 

(This Annexure form part of the audited Annual Financial Statements) 

 

DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008 

               

Members of the accounting authority – Executive Directors’ remuneration 2008 
 Director’s 

fees 
Basic salary Bonuses 

and per-
formance-

related 
payments 

Travel 
allowances 

Subsis-
tence 

allowances 

Contribu-
tions to 
pension 
funds in 

respect of 
services as 
directors 

Contribu-
tions to 
medical 

aids 

Contribu-
tions to 

insurance 
schemes 

Commis-
sion 

Monetary 
value of 

any other 
material 
benefits 
received 

Compensa-
tion for loss 
in respect 
of office of 

director 

Compensa-
tion for loss 
in respect of 
other office 

Amounts 
paid in 
respect 

of accep-
tance of 

office 

TOTAL 

Services 
rendered as 
director of 
company 

                            

JN Seroke  -   395,374   23,339   45,000  -   3,057  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   466,770  

T Maitse  -   314,772   18,764   71,056  -   50,466   1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   456,774  

BG Khumalo  -   239,730  -  -   -     1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   241,446  

NP Gasa  -   421,524   28,866  -   -   63,937   1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   516,043  

M Shozi  -   295,159   17,352   48,000  -   50,466   1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   412,693  

R Shabodien  -   205,116  -  -   -     1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   206,832  

J Hicks 
 -   266,745   16,032   70,638  -   50,466   1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   405,597  

N Meruti 
-   230,725  -   12,000  -     1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   244,441  

N B Khutsaone 
-   242,725  -  -   -    1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   244,441  

YN Abrahams 
-   302,447   17,513   43,269  -   50,466   1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   415,411  

NEP Loyilane -   284,841   16,706   15,261  -   50,466   1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   368,989  

N Memani-Balani  -   242,713  -    -     1,716  -  -  -  -  -  -   244,429  

TOTAL  -   3,441,872   138,572   305,223   -   319,321   29,172   -   -   -   -   -   -   4,223,864  
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Members of the accounting authority – Executive Directors’ remuneration 2007 

  

Director’s 
fees 

Basic salary Bonuses 
and per-

formance-
related 

payments 

Travel 
allow-
ances 

Subsistence 
allowances 

Contribu-
tions to 
pension 
funds in 

respect of 
services as 
directors 

Contribu-
tions to 
medical 

aids 

Contribu-
tions to 

insurance 
schemes 

Commis-
sion 

Monetary 
value of 

any other 
material 
benefits 
received 

Compensa-
tion for loss 
in respect 
of office of 

director 

Compensa-
tion for loss 
in respect of 
other office 

Amounts 
paid in 

respect of 
accep-

tance of 
office 

TOTAL 

Services 
rendered as 
director of 
company 

                            

                            

JN Seroke  -   526,191   43,849  - - - - - - - - - -  570,040  

T Maitse  -   248,095   -  - - - - - - - - - -  248,095  

BG Khumalo  -   453,762   37,812  - -  42,018  - - - - - - -  533,592  

G Fester  -   360,449   -  - - - - - - - - - -  360,449  

N Siqwana-Ndulo  -   451,655   -  - -  37,668  - - - - - - -  489,323 

R Manjoo  -   143,401   -  - - - - - - - - - -  143,401  

TL Dumisa  -   176,198   -  - - - - - - - - - -  176,198  

TT Khasi -   266,610   -  - - - - - - - - - -  266,610  

TOTAL  -   2,626,360   81,662   -   -   79,686   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   2,787,708  
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Chief Executive Officer or person in charge of the public entity – 2008 

  

Basic salary Bonuses and 
perfor-
mance-
related 

payments 

Travel 
allowances 

Subsis-
tence 

allowan-
ces 

Contribu-
tions to 
pension 

funds 

Contribu-
tions to 
medical 

aids 

Contribu-
tions to 

insurance 
schemes 

Commis-
sion 

Profit 
sharing 

Gains 
made on 

the 
exercise 
of share 
options 

Monetary 
value of 

any other 
material 
benefits 
received 

Compensa-
tion for loss 

of office 

Amounts 
paid in 
respect 

of accep-
tance of 

office 

Total 

MCC Majake  515,977   42,056   106,797  -  79,798  -  - - - - - - -  744,627  

TOTAL  515,977   42,056   106,797   -   79,798   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   744,627  

 

Chief Executive Officer or person in charge of the public entity – 2007 

  

Basic salary Bonuses and 
perfor-
mance-
related 

payments 

Travel 
allowances 

Subsis-
tence 

allowan-
ces 

Contribu-
tions to 
pension 

funds 

Contribu-
tions to 
medical 

aids 

Contribu-
tions to 

insurance 
schemes 

Commis-
sion 

Profit 
sharing 

Gains 
made on 

the 
exercise 
of share 
options 

Monetary 
value of 

any other 
material 
benefits 
received 

Compensa-
tion for loss 

of office 

Amounts 
paid in 
respect 

of accep-
tance of 

office 

Total 

MCC Majake  376,514   31,053   86,999  -   38,404   37,562  - - - - - - -  570,533  

TOTAL  376,514   31,053   86,999   -   38,404   37,562   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   570,533  
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Chief Financial Officer – 2008 

  

Basic salary Bonuses and 
perfor-
mance-
related 

payments 

Travel 
allowances 

Subsis-
tence 

allowan-
ces 

Contribu-
tions to 
pension 

funds 

Contribu-
tions to 
medical 

aids 

Contribu-
tions to 

insurance 
schemes 

Commis-
sion 

Profit 
sharing 

Gains 
made on 

the 
exercise 
of share 
options 

Monetary 
value of 

any other 
material 
benefits 
received 

Compensa-
tion for loss 

of office 

Amounts 
paid in 
respect 

of accep-
tance of 

office 

Total 

M Putu  193,895  -   35,000  -  -  - - - - - - - -  228,895  

G Kruger  150,913  -   25,000  -   47,005  - - - - - - - -  222,917  

TOTAL  344,807   -   60,000   -   47,005   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   451,812  

 

Chief Financial Officer – 2007 

  

Basic salary Bonuses and 
perfor-
mance-
related 

payments 

Travel 
allowances 

Subsis-
tence 

allowan-
ces 

Contribu-
tions to 
pension 

funds 

Contribu-
tions to 
medical 

aids 

Contribu-
tions to 

insurance 
schemes 

Commis-
sion 

Profit 
sharing 

Gains 
made on 

the 
exercise 
of share 
options 

Monetary 
value of 

any other 
material 
benefits 
received 

Compensa-
tion for loss 

of office 

Amounts 
paid in 
respect 

of accep-
tance of 

office 

Total 

G Kruger  84,429   1,466   18,461   -   7,669  - - - - - - - -  112,025  

TOTAL  84,429   1,466   18,461   -   7,669   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   112,025  
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Persons serving on senior management – 2008 

  

Basic salary Bonuses and 
perfor-
mance-
related 

payments 

Travel 
allowances 

Subsis-
tence 

allowan-
ces 

Contribu-
tions to 
pension 

funds 

Contribu-
tions to 
medical 

aids 

Contribu-
tions to 

insurance 
schemes 

Commis-
sion 

Profit 
sharing 

Gains 
made on 

the 
exercise 
of share 
options 

Monetary 
value of 

any other 
material 
benefits 
received 

Compensa-
tion for 
loss of 
office 

Amounts 
paid in 
respect 

of accep-
tance of 

office 

Total 

Mrs M De Waal  369,238   30,080   60,403  -   55,124  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   514,845  

P Mashangoane  99,854   38,481   20,100  -   52,816  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   211,250  

A H Richardson  135,107  -   - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   135,107  

T Monama  117,507   33,229   26,818  -   45,498  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   223,053  

L Mallane  469,811   34,289   104,167  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   608,267  

Y Mogadime  354,757   28,573   56,769  -   51,278  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   491,377  

TOTAL  1,546,274   164,651   268,257   -   204,716   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   2,183,899  

 
 
 

Persons serving on senior management 2007 

  

Basic salary Bonuses and 
perfor-
mance-
related 

payments 

Travel 
allowances 

Subsis-
tence 

allowan-
ces 

Contribu-
tions to 
pension 

funds 

Contribu-
tions to 
medical 

aids 

Contribu-
tions to 

insurance 
schemes 

Commis-
sion 

Profit 
sharing 

Gains 
made on 

the 
exercise 
of share 
options 

Monetary 
value of 

any other 
material 
benefits 
received 

Compensa-
tion for 
loss of 
office 

Amounts 
paid in 
respect 

of accep-
tance of 

office 

Total 

Mrs M De Waal  337,746   44,914   61,369  -  35,404  -  - - - - - - -  479,434  

P Mashangoane  281,620   25,205   80,400  -  29,229   29,719  - - - - - - -  446,173  

T Monama  84,369   -   19,017  -  8,606  -  - - - - - - -  111,992  

L Mallane  168,151   6,308   36,099  -  17,151  -  - - - - - - -  227,709  

Y Mogadime  106,650   4,144   26,667  -  10,834  -  - - - - - - -  148,295  

TOTAL 
 978,536   80,571   223,552   -   101,224   29,719   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1,413,604  
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Commission for Gender Equality 

Annual financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2008 

 
Detailed Statement of Financial Performance 

 
 2008  2007 

 R  R 

Revenue     

Government grants   39,745,000    37,757,000  

Donor funding   522,058    376,932  

  40,267,058    38,177,249  

Other income   -    

Sundry revenue   814,212    326,773  

 

Expenses   (47,761,329)   (32,945,661) 

Operating surplus   (6,680,060)   5,558,361  

Finance costs   (333,632)   (267,011) 

Surplus/(deficit) for the period   (7,013,692)   (5,248,143) 

 
Operating expenses   (47,761,329)   (32,945,661) 

Consumables   34,367    (760,462) 

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments   2,731,026    (2,072,692) 

Employee costs   23,581,596    (16,144,086) 

Sundry employee cost     (169,637) 

Entertainment   125,995    (270,291) 

Bonuses   1,683,177    (62,705) 

Parking costs  
Sanitary fees  

 161,371    (57,199) 

    (136,486) 

Other expenditure   5,925,009    (4,723) 

Plant maintenance external labour   63,573    (24,864) 

Stock expenses      (59,354) 

Bank charges   110,007    (33,289) 

Accounting fees      (63,205) 

Organisational diagnosis      

Contractual amounts      

Gifts   136,130    (87,424) 

IT expenses   65,660    (316,230) 

Insurance   816,464    (56,828) 

Cleaning   49,984    (116,475) 

Lease rentals   277,394    (1,404,085) 

Legal expenses   913,291    -  

Motor vehicle expenses   406,905    (15,968) 

Programme expenditure   394,104    (7,136,675) 

Advertising      (588,760) 

Computer expenses   4,910    (220,431) 

Petrol and oil   1,385,796    (16,277) 

Postage   313,495    (253,345) 

Printing and stationery   803,934    (883,422) 

Repairs and maintenance   898,547    (69,670) 

Audit related costs   43,759    (585,698) 

Consulting and professional fees   2,177,918    (453,868) 

Subscriptions   4,656,919    (6,738) 

Telephone and fax   -    (562,632) 

Travel – local   -    (312,141) 
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Acronyms and abbreviations  
 

AIDS   Acquired immune deficiency syndrome 

ANC   African National Congress 

ACRA   Association for Community and Rural Advancement 

ARC   Annual report cards 

ASA   Advertising Standards Authority of South Africa 

BEE   Black economic empowerment 

CALS   Centre for Applied Legal Studies 

CBO   Community-based organisation 

CCMA   Commission for Conciliation, Mediation and Arbitration 

CEO   Chief Executive Officer 

CFO   Chief Financial Officer 

CGE   Commission for Gender Equality  

CONTRALESA  Congress of Traditional Leaders of South Africa 

COO   Chief Operations Officer 

CSAP   Civil Society Advocacy Programme 

DOJ   Department of Justice and Constitutional Development   

DVA   Domestic Violence Act 

ERC   Equality Review Committee 

FBO   Faith-based organisation 

GBV   Gender-based violence 

GCIS   Government Communication and Information System 

GETT   Gender Equity Task Team 

HIV   Human immunodeficiency virus 

HOD   Head of department 

HR   Human resources 

IDP   Integrated Development Plan 

IRC   Information and Resource Centre 

IT   Information technology 

JMC   Joint Monitoring Committee 

KZN   KwaZulu-Natal 

LAB   Legal Aid Board 

LGBTI    Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgendered and inter-sexed  

LRC   Legal Resources Centre 

NCS   National curriculum statements  

NGO   Non-governmental organisation 

NPA   National Prosecuting Authority 

NVAW   Network on Violence against Women 

NW   North-West 

OD   Organisational Diagnostic 

OPP   Office of the Public Protector 

OSW   Office on the Status of Women 

OVC   Orphaned and vulnerable children 

PEI   Public Education and Information Programme 

PEPUDA Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act 

PEU   Professional Education Union 

PFMA   Public Finance Management Act, 1990 

PGM   Provincial Gender Machinery 
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POWA   People Opposing Women Abuse 

PWMSA    Progressive Women’s Movement of South Africa 

RSA   Republic of South Africa 

SADC   Southern African Development Community 

SAHRC   South African Human Rights Commission 

SALGA    South African Local Government Association 

SAQA   South African Qualifications Authority 

SCA   Supreme Court of Appeal 

UN   United Nations 

WARD   Women in Agriculture and Rural Development 

WC   World Congress 


